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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
SUMMARY

Medifast, Inc. (the "Company” or “Medifast”) is a Delawacorporation, incorporated in 1993. The Company’s operations
are primarily conducted through five of its wholly owned sulasiels, Jason Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Jason"), Take $tweapie, Inc.
(“TSFL"), Jason Enterprises, Inc., Jason Properties, 8h@ Seven Crondall, LLC. The Company is engaged in the praductio
distribution, and sale of weight management and diseasegemapat products and other consumable health and diet products.
Medifast, Inc.’s product lines include weight and diseaseagement, meal replacement, and vitamins primarily manutdin its
modern, FDA approved facility in Owings Mills, Maryland.

MARKETS

Throughout the past 30 years, obesity in the United Stasedrimatically increased. The obesity epidemic showgn® s
of slowing down and recently, the condition has worsenechgrimericans rather than improved. Approximately 1.7 Inilpeople
worldwide are overweight; however the percentage afvemight adults is the highest in the United States, twiththirds of all
Americans being overweight or obese.

According to a recent study, “Prevalence of Obesity andv@ight in the United States”, published in April 2006 indbarnal of
American Medical Association, almost 7 out of 10 adulthe U.S. are overweight or obese, with 60 million (ouabarty percent)
American adults suffering from obesityhe obesity epidemic raises concern among Americans begfathgeimplications
associated with their health. The most common heatttlitons associated with obesity are type Il diabetesneoy heart disease,
hypertension and stroke, sleep apnea and respiratory prolgedtbiadder disease, depression and certain formaoéca

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention shoveltiesity is not only affects adults, but children and adetésas
well. According to the CDC, the obesity prevalence ifdebn and adolescents has tripled since 1976. Overweighttesdy in
children and adolescents increases the risk of healtiiepns such as high blood pressure, high cholesterol and Typb&&ia

Type 2 Diabetes is expected to increase by 165% between 2D@0%Mhaccording to a study “Projection of diabetes
burden through 2050: impact of change demography and diseaakepoevin the U.S.”, published 2001 in Diabetes Care. In
addition, a study published by the CDC in October 2007 shows htdvechare now being affected by Type 2 diabetes. Obese
children suffering from Type 2 diabetes are at increas&dfisuffering significant morbidities in the form of amjtiatas, kidney
problems, and blindness.

Obesity is defined as a Body Mass Index (BMI) of 30 Kgfngreater, whereas overweight is defined as a BMimgng
between 25 and 30 kgfmAccording to a recent study conducted by the Centersi$eraBe Control and Prevention in 2006, only four
(4) states in the U.S.A. had a prevalence of obesiythes twenty percent (20%). Twenty—two states showeelvalpnce equal to
or greater than twenty-five percent (25%), and twdo§é states had a prevalence of obesity equal to oegtiean thirty percent
(30%).

The primary obesity causing factors are preventable alidmreavn in the United States. These factors are unhediéty
and physical inactivity. It's estimated that poor nutrigord physical inactivity account for more than 300,000 preateaths per
year in the U.S. According to the United States DepartwieHealth and Human Services, only 25% of adults andhess25% of
teenagers include the suggested 5 or more servinggetiaizes and fruits in their daily meal. More than hBKroerican adults fail
to engage in the suggested amount of physical activitymane than 1/3 of young Americans do not engage in reggarods
physical activity at all.

The United States Department of Human and Health Semstiges that Americans spend $117 billion in costs assdciate
with overweight and obesity. Direct medical and healthcasts total $93 billion. The U.S. weight loss marketsitmated to be a
$55 billion/ year industry. This includes consumer spending driadids, health clubs, commercial weight loss centevschlorie
prepared foods, medically supervised and commercial waighigrograms, diet books, appetite suppressants, drsfigateners,
diet sodas, videos and cassettes, children’s weightdosgscand more.



Distribution Channels

Medifast Direct — In the direct to consumer channel, customers order Medifadugrdlirectly through the Company's website,
www.choosemedifast.com, or our in-house call center. prbduct is shipped directly to the customer’s house. Custonaees
access to support from qualified nutritional practitioners @rstomer care representatives via telephone, e-mail it @hats.
Medifast Direct offers a robust online web community anchtipfor support, information and meal planning for weighs lasd
weight maintenance. This business is driven by an aggeessilti-media customer acquisition strategy that includies, pelevision,
radio, direct mail and web advertising as well as putdlations initiatives. The Medifast Direct divisioncéses on targeted
marketing initiatives and providing customer support througimitouse call center and nutrition support teams to bettee s
clients. In addition, Medifast also continued to promateugte of leading web technology featuring customized nheahipg and
community components.

Take Shape for Life™ - Take Shape for Life is a physician led network of indepedndealth coaches who are trained to provide
coaching and support to clients on Medifast programs. thHeahches are conduits to give clients the strategiesskahsl to
successfully reach a healthy weight and then provide a roacoreagpower the individual to take control of their healfake Shape
for Life offers the exclusive BeSIif¥ philosophy, which encourages long-term weight maintenanake $hape for Life also moves
beyond the scope of weight loss to show customers how tevacbptimal health through the balance of body, mind, and fisanc
Take Shape for Life uses the high quality, medically vatidgtroducts of Medifast as the platform to launch integadised lifelong
health optimization program.

Program entrants are encouraged to consult with their pricaae physician and a Take Shape for Life Health Coach to
determine the Medifast program that is right for themaltieCoaches are supported, educated and qualified by The Hestitiié,
a training group staffed by Medifast professionals. HeAlflvisors obtain Medifast qualification based upon testing ofr thei
knowledge on Medifast products and programs.

Take Shape for Life is a member of the Direct Sellingo&gtion (DSA), a national trade association reprasguatrer 200
direct selling companies doing business in the United Statefecome a member of the DSA Take Shapéifer, like other active
DSA member companies, underwent a comprehensive and riganeugear company review by DSA legal staff that included a
detailed analysis of its company business plan matefidiis. review is designed to ensure that a company’s buginesices do not
contravene DSA’s Code of Ethics. Compliance with the reogings of the Code of Ethics is paramount to become andrremai
member in good standing of DSA. Accordingly, Membership il\[D$ Take Shape for Life demonstrates its commitmenhéo
highest standards of ethics and a pledge not to engage in apjidecunlawful, or unethical business practices. Antbnge Code
of Ethics proscriptions are pyramid schemes or endless sbhh@mes as defined by federal, state, or local |&Aseover, Take
Shape for Life, like other DSA member companies in good stanbasypledged to provide consumers with accurate and truthful
information regarding the price, grade, quality, and peréorce of the products Take Shape for Life markets.

Medifast Weight Control Centers — The Medifast Weight Control Center is the brick and maltaic channel of Medifast located
in Texas and Florida. In 2008, the Company opened ten new Btedight Control Centers and had a total of twenty lonatin
operation at year-end. The centers offer a supervised modea nationally advertised brand which encourages walkathsederrals
from other Medifast business channels. In addition to offesirgpmprehensive Medifast program, the clinics offerornited
patient counseling programs, and the InbBigomposition analysis.

In 2008, the Company began offering the clinic model as a fremdmportunity. On February 18, 2008, the Company announced
that it has sold its first franchise of Medifast Weigln€ol Centers. The Company sold the rights to open fmicin the Greater
Baltimore Metropolitan Area. The franchisee also mesrights to open four additional Medifast Weight Controht€es in the
Baltimore area over the next two years, bringing tte to eight locations. On June 3, 2008 the Company annothmeiti sold the
rights to open four Medifast Weight Control Centers in Sautl@alifornia and three Medifast Weight Control Center<entral
California to two different local business operators. @aober 8, 2008, the Company announced the opening of its finshise
clinic in the Baltimore, MD area. In December 2008, thvisglifast Weight Control Center franchise locations odeneSouthern
California and one location opened in Central CaliforniaDécember 31, 2008, five franchise locations were operating.

The Company continues to support its controlled label licemseel, Hi-Energy, by providing marketing materials, ads,
on-site trainings, fitness programs, nutritional progranascinical operation materials and forms.

Medifast Physicians—Medifast physicians have implemented the Medifast progréhinvtheir practice. These physicians carry an
inventory of Medifast products and resell them to patientey&lso provide appropriate medical monitoring, testind,saipport for
patients on the program. Management estimates that imanel5,000 physicians nationwide have recommended Medifast as a
treatment for their overweight patients since 1980, and avezstimated 1 million patients have used its’ products to dosk
maintain their weight.



The Company offers an additional in-house support program ist @sstomers that are consulting their primary care
physician. Customers have access to registered distitiat provide program support and advice via a toll &eplione help line,
by e-mail and online chats.

THE MEDIFAST® BRAND

Medifast enriches lives by providing innovative choices &stihg health through products and programs. Medifast is
physician recommended and clinically proven offering progriomsveight management, weight maintenance and long terfthhea
through multiple channels of distribution. Medifast productstagh quality, portion controlled meal replacement foolfsrecent
years, Medifast's core products and programs have contimuespnd over a wellness spectrum to include health managemen
products such as those specially formulated for people witieigis as well as products for women'’s health, joint haalthcoronary
health.

While all Medifast products are suitable for individualshwigpe 2 diabetes, Medifast also has a line of productsadipec
designed to meet the needs of people with diabetes — MdieBlfss for Diabetics. Medifast Plus for Diabeticsdurcts consist of three
delicious, patented shakes that have been certified ‘loveglic’ by the Glycemic Research Institute.

Over 40 Medifast products qualify for the FDA's heart leatflaim, “May Reduce the Risk of Heart Disease.” In ptde
make this claim, a product must contain at least 6.25 gréaswmygrotein per serving and be low in fat, saturated dafium, and
cholesterol. Unlike popular fad diets and herbal supplesnéfedifast products are a safe, nutritionally balancedcehaiffering
gender specific formulas containing high protein and low cadiraitgs, a soy protein source rather than animal proteieesaamd
vitamin and mineral fortification. It is very difficulbtmeet the minimum recommended nutritional requirements ow-gdlorie
diet, but a dieter can easily meet these requirenusittg the nutrient dense Medifast brand of meal replatefoed supplements.

Portion controlled, meal replacement weight managepragrams are continuing to gain popularity, as consumershsear
for a safe and effective solution that provides balancéition, quick weight loss and valuable behavior modifimatéducation. In
addition, consumers are becoming more aware of chronic e#ssash as diabetes and coronary health.

Clinical Research Overview

Medifast uses both clinical research studies and retctigpa@nalysis data from its Medifast clinics as th&daf its claim,
“clinically proven.” The following abstracts include bothepeeviewed research (consisting of prospective controlleital trials
and retrospective studies) and in-house clinical data éstTd& 8).

Study 1
Reference

Haddock CK, Poston WSC, Foreyt JP, DiBartolomeo JJetEfeness of Medifast supplements combined with obesity
pharmacotheraphy: A clinical program evaluatideating and Weight Disorder43:95-101; 2008.

Purpose
To evaluate the long-term impact of Medifast meal-reptant supplements (MMRS) combined with appetite-suppressant
medication (ASM) among participants who received 52 weklkgatment as part of a medically supervised weightrabptogram.

Results

Participants who completed 52 weeks of treatment experiksubstantial weight losses at 12 (-9.4 + 5.7kg), 24 (+12.0kg), and
52 weeks (12.4 + 9.2kg), and all measures were significdifitrent from baseline weight (p<0.001 for all contsa$br both true
completers (n=324) and for ITT analysis (n=1,351). Fifty paroépatients remained in the program at 24 weeks arty 2&6
were still participating at one year. Results wergebélhan those typically reported for obesity pharmacotherapgth short- and
long-term studies, and also better than those reportgaufoal meal-replacement programs.

This study was published in the June 2008 iss&idfig and Weight DisorderResults of this study were presented at the American
Society of Bariatric Physicians’ annual meeting in May 2007.

Study 2
Reference

Davis LM, Coleman CD, Andersen WS, Cheskin LJ. “The efi¢chetabolism-boosting beverages on 24-hr energy expenditure.”
The Open Nutrition JournaP:37-41; 2008.

Purpose
To test the effect of thermogenic meal-replacemereta@es (TMRB) containing 90 mg of EGCG and 100 mg of iceffen resting
energy expenditure (REE). Thirty adults (19 women, 11 merg steatified into 3 groups: lean (n=10, BMI 21.5 + 2.1);



overweight/obese (OW) (n=10, BMI 29.8 + 2.7); or weighintainers (WM) (n=10, BMI 28.8 + 4.0). Following an overnifgst,
baseline measurements, including REE via indirect caltnymeere performed. REE was repeated at 30, 60, 90120 minutes
after consuming a TMRB. Appetite was assessed via vigaldgue scale at baseline, 30 minutes, and 120 minutes@i®rming
the TMRB.

Results

Mean 24-hour REE was increased 5.9 + 2.5% overall (p=0.000),3%IP%-among lean subjects (p=0.0002), 5.3 + 1.4% among OW
subjects (p=0.000), and 6.8 + 2.7% among WM subjects (p=0.000p¢tife was significantly reduced 30 minutes after consuming
the TMRB (p=0.0002). TMRBs appear to be a promising weight-aiotatl.

This study was presented as a poster session at Experimarhaiy32008.

Study 3
Reference

Cheskin LJgt al “Efficacy of meal replacements versus a standard foedebdiet for weight loss in type 2 diabeté&he Diabetes
Educator.34(1):118-127; Jan/Feb 2008.

Purpose
To compare the efficacy of a portion-controlled meal-regt@ent diet (PCD) to a standard diet (SD) (basedammm@endations by
the American Diabetes Association) in achieving and raiginty weight loss among 119 obese men and women with tylab&es
mellitus.

Results

Using intention-to-treat analyses, weight loss at 34 svaekl weight maintenance at 86 weeks was significantkgr@ttPCD versus
SD. Approximately 40% of the PCD participants lost >5%hefrtinitial weight compared with 12% of those on the Significant
improvements in biochemical and metabolic measures weeeveldlsat 34 weeks in both groups. The retention rate #negerted
ease of adherence in the PCD group were significanthehiproughout the study.

This study was published in the January/February 2008 isstieeoDiabetes EducatoFhe peer-reviewed journal is the official
journal of the American Association of Diabetes Educators. fidy svas also presented at the American Diabetes Assocs68h’
Annual Scientific Session, 2005.

Study 4
Reference

Cheskin LJgt al “A RCT comparing balanced energy deficit diets with gheut meal
replacements for weight loss and maintenance amongeittieting alone or with a parent.” Johns Hopkins Bloombehg@ of
Public Health, Center for Human Nutrition, Departmerinhtgrnational Health.

Purpose

To compare the safety and efficacy of supplemental Medlitatibn-controlled meal replacements (MRs) to a USBAd-Guide
Pyramid-based diet. Both weight-loss diets were 20%ggwesstricted (~500 kcal deficit). Eighty children (8-15.);.0
BMI>95th%ile, were screened and randomized to either a MR3IMRs/d during active weight loss and 2 MRs/d during
maintenance) or to the food-based diet. Subjects werefudndomized to dieting alone or with a parent.

Results

By ITT analysis, dieting alone vs. with a parent or fasdMR made no difference in weight outcome. Howevelgohg initial
weight loss (6 mos) and 1 yr maintenance (18 mos), signifoearfits were seen in the MR group in BMI%ile (O n2%8 + 1.0, 6
mos=96.6 + 3.2, 18 mos=96.4 + 3.4); body fat ( 5.9% @ 6 518% @ 18 mos); total cholesterol ( 6.7% @ 6 Mo$Hp5B 18 Mos);
LDL ( 19.8% @ 6 mos, 7.9% @ 18 mos); and triglycerid23.6% @ 6 mos, 22.3% @ 18 mos). No significant betweengroup
differences, differences in growth rates, or adverseteweere observed. Conclusions: Among overweight 8-15 lyildren, dieting
with or without a parent, meal replacements were @sasaf effective as a food-based diet for weight lods@intenance.

This study was presented as a poster session at Experimasaly2007.

Study 5
Reference

Matalon V. “Impaired capacity to lose visceral adip@ssue during weight reduction in obese postmenopausal woittetihes
Trp64Arg B3-adrenoceptor gene variaiabetes49:1709-1713; 2000.



Purpose

To examine the effect of the Trp64Arg gene variant on totdlvisceral adipose tissue loss, and cardiovascueiad®ors in
response to weight reduction among 24 obese women (age ¥s)}ida 13 + 3 mos weight reduction program of 1,200 kithl or
without the inclusion of Medifast.

Results

Whether women were carriers or noncarriers of the Trp64Rete, significant weight loss (-16.4 + 5.0kg vs. 114.6.2kg, NS) and
reductions in body fat (-10.0 + 5.2 vs. -11.5 + 3.9kg, NSkweéserved in response to a calorie-restricted progiittmomwithout
Medifast. Loss of visceral adipose tissue was 43% lawearriers of the Trp64Arg allele compared with noncasriet6 + 27 vs. -

81 + 51cm2, p=0.05). The study concluded that older women cathgrnfyp64Arg B3-adrenoceptor gene variant have an impaired
capacity to lose visceral adipose tissue in responseatwiae-restricted diet.

Study 6
Reference

Matalon V. “An evaluation of weight loss following a bahydrate and fat restricted diet with appetite suppreasantlietary
supplementation.The Bariatrician.10-13; 2000.

Purpose

To assess the safety and effectiveness of a weightdgsaen consisting of a carbohydrate- and fat restriggtdsdpplemented with
an appetite suppressant, a dietary supplement, and a liqtéchgionk (Medifast) in an open label trial. Baselame 6-mos
evaluations of body weight (Ibs), body fat (%), BMI (kg/m2an body mass, water weight, and blood pressurepeei@med. At 6
mos, statistically significant differences were foundfody weight (p<0.001), percent body fat (p<0.001), BMI (p<0.0@&h body
mass (p<0.001), water weight (p=0.01), and body systolic @p3pand diastolic (p<0.001) blood pressure.

Results

Of 47 patients enrolled, 24 (51%) completed six months tkangietary regimen prescribed. Data was analyzedlifpatients who
were treated with the diet, as well as for the sulfsghtients who completed the entire study period. Therglietgimen showed that
a carbohydrate- and fat restricted program supplementachaiural appetite suppressant can lead to progressiylet \ass of
comparable value to prescribed pharmacologic agents @itritn@f study. Patients in the study experienced statlgtaignificant
decreases in overall body weight, percent body fat, BMh Eody mass, total body water, and both systolic antblilsiood
pressure.

Study 7
Reference

Crowell MD, Cheskin LJ. “Multicenter evaluation of héalienefits and weight loss on the Medifast weight manegeprogram.”
The Johns Hopkins University School of Medicine.

Purpose
To retrospectively evaluate the efficacy of a medjcsilipervised, protein-supplemented modified program (Msgifor weight
reduction and to evaluate the impact of weight reduction exigting health problems.

Results

The results of the study concluded that medically supenpsettin-sparing meal-replacement programs offer a safeféexdive
means of weight reduction and are accompanied by signifitgnovements in coexisting health problems. Of samples takales
lost an average of 67 Ibs and females lost an avefatjelos during fasting. The study found significant reductionstal
cholesterol and triglycerides, systolic and diastolantlpressure, and normalized blood pressure in hypertensigetpat

Study 8
Reference

Davis LM, Cheskin LJ. “Dietary intervention using Mfedit meal replacements in pre-bariatric surgery patiefdhns Hopkins
Weight Management Center; 2006.

Purpose

N=14 severely obese patients—13 females (11 African Amegj@aCaucasians) and 1 male (Caucasian)—with a mean BMI bt
kg/m2 (range 40.2kg/m2 to 91.7kg/m2) entered a 6-month weight-tpmgram at the Johns Hopkins Weight Management Center.
All patients were Medicaid (Priority Partners) reape The program provided a comprehensive approach to vesigtiol focused

on diet, behavior, and physical activity. Portion-conélineal replacements (MRs) supplied by Medifast wélieaat as part of the
dietary-behavior intervention. All subjects met withaetised dietitian and were prescribed a 1,000-1,200 kcaliefaglan
incorporating up to 6 MRs/day. Only 1 subject chose natdorporate meal replacements as part of a low-cadteplan. The

average intake of meal replacements was 2.5-3 per aagththe duration of the study.



Results
After 6 months on the program, patients lost an averag®.@8 Ibs (-2.86kg/m2) and 6.96% body weight, and reported davigh
of satisfaction with their diet plan. Program completgrs month were N=13, at 3 months N=12, and 6 months N=10.

A statistical review of patient charts, unpublished datalen2006.
Scientific Advisory Board

In September 2008, Medifast announced the formation of ikst8ic Advisory Board.

The role of the Board is to continually review the effeeness, safety, and nutritional benefits of Medifagtbducts and programs.
The team of specialists will also assist in the dguelent of new Meals and supplements, as well as weighfiroaches for
specific medical needs (i.e., patients with heartedisgor lifestyles (vegetarians, etc.).

The work of this cross-disciplinary group builds on Medifakgritage of medically sound approaches to weight lodghan
incorporation of leading-edge clinical research into thepaonw's products and programs.

Lawrence Cheskin, M.D.
Director of the Johns Hopkins Weight Management Centaliimore, MD

Miriam Cohen, M.D., F.A.C.C.
Cardiologist and Assistant Professor at the Unived§iMaryland Medical School

Scott Kahan, M.D., M.P.H.
Instructor at the Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School of Publidtiiea

Varsha Vaidya, M.D.
Assistant Professor of Psychiatry and General Interndide at Johns Hopkins University School of Medicine, Roeof the
Obesity Psychiatry program at Johns Hopkins Bayview Medleater

Alison Duncan, Ph.D., RD
Associate Professor, Department of Human Health and&l&uiences at University of Guelph, Functional Foods Expert

Debra L. Miller, Ph.D.
Director of Nutrtion at the Hershey Company

COMPETITION

There are many different kinds of diet products and prograthgwhe weight loss industry. These include a wide variety
of commercial weight loss programs, pharmaceutical ptedweeight loss books, self-help diets, dietary supplemesetite
suppressants and meal replacement shakes and bars. fShtedifast’s top competitors are Jenny Craig, NutrisysteEDiets,
Herbalife, and Weight Watchers.

The Company has proven it can compete in this competitivketbecause its products have been clinically tested and
proven in clinical studies conducted by researchers from Jobpisrt$ University and other major institutions, the Medifasducts
have been safely and effectively used by customers and ressuhech by physicians for over 28 years. Medifast has beéimeon
cutting edge of product development with soy based nutritiamélweight management products since 1980. These products are
formulated with high-quality, low-calorie, low-fat ingiiedts that provide alternatives to fad diets or mediciveight loss remedies.

The Company's diverse multi-channel distribution strategy méhkedviedifast brand available through multiple support
channels, which target different customer needs. Medifastitpmaers offer Medifast to patients through wholesalaromnovative
home delivery model and some practitioners choose torjiresgppetite suppression diet drugs to patients in conjunetith a
Medifast based diet. Medifast Direct via the webaitd call center serves customers with free online suppdrcommunity tools
and access to nutritionists and customer service repagisest The Take Shape for Life division offers the qeab support of a
health coach that is often a person who has achieved succtss Medifast program and has turned their success into a ssisine
opportunity generating incremental revenue for the compaaydhrrelationship marketing. Medifast Weight Control Candéfier a
medically supervised and structured model for customers vetfier pnore accountability and personalized counseling on tigesppno
The Medifast program alone is a mild ketogenic diet thatrably suppresses appetite and eliminates hunger without thirapies
for most people.



PRODUCTS

The Company offers a variety of weight and disease marageproducts under the Medifast® brand and for select private
label customers. The Medifast line includes Medifast@shakes, Medifast® 70 Shakes, Medifast® Plus for Appetifpi®@ssion
Shakes, Medifast® Plus for Women’'s Health Shakes, Mé@ifRfus for Diabetics Shakes, Medifast® Plus for Joiaalth Shakes,
Medifast® Plus for Coronary Health Shakes, New! Medifdomentum Drinks, New! Momentum Flavor Infusers, New!igxitlant
Shakes, New! Antioxidant Flavor Infusers, New! Super Omeddegiifast® Bars, New! Medifast Crispy Bars, MedifasBgeamy
Soups, Medifast® Chicken Noodle Soup, Medifast® Chicken &Wilce Soup, Medifast® Beef Vegetable Stew, Medifastinkt
style Chili, Medifast® Oatmeal, Medifast® Pudding, Mesdif&a Scrambled Eggs, Medifast® Hot Cocoa, Medifast® Cappag
Medifast® Chai Latte, Medifast® Iced Teas, Medifast®ifDrinks, Medifast® Soy Crisps, and Medifast® Crasker

Medifast nutritional products are formulated with high-qyaliiow-calorie, and low-fat ingredients. Many Medifast
products are soy based and contain 24 vitamins and mineras|las other nutrients essential for good health. Thapaay uses
Solae® brand soy protein, which is a high-quality compedéein derived from soybeans.

Medifast brand awareness continues to expand through the Compaarketing campaigns, product development, line
extensions, and the Company’s emphasis on quality customieséechnical support and publications developed by the Company’s
marketing staff. Medifast products have been proven tdfbetige for weight and disease management in clinicalessucbnducted
by researchers from the U.S. government and Johns Hopkinsr&ityiveThe Company has continued to develop its sales and
marketing operations with qualified management and innovativgrgms. The Company's facility in Owings Mills, MD
manufactures all powders and subcontracts the production @fatsyR o-Drink products, meal replacement bars, crackersrispg
and omega 3 capsules.

NEW PRODUCTS

In 2008, the Company expanded the Medifast product line in 2008 by intrygdunew line of metabolic boosters. This
product line includes shakes and flavor infusers (to flavéervthat includes a specific blend of caffeine and epigatiérhin gallate
(EGCG), designed to help burn calories and fat. Comspthree of these products a day can help burn an extra to@sgler day.

The Company also added new products aimed at optimizing hEkdttirst of these products was a new supplement line-
Super Omega 3. This product boasts one of the highest caimergof docosahexanoic acid (DHA) and eicosapentanoic acid
(EPA) on the market as well as organic Flax Seed fdthyelaair, skin, and nails. This product services a yaonéneeds from
decreasing body fat to improving satiety, to providinglicgrotection to prevention of cognitive decline. Tampany also
designed a special line of antioxidant infusers and shdkash Shake and Infuser gives you the antioxidant poviesmodill
servings of fruits and vegetables.

Medifast also began its plan to expand the Medifasliriato include Crispy bars that are fully interchangealitle all the
other meals in the program. In the past, bars couldbengnjoyed once a day because of the higher calorie and cartietigueh
The new bars contain only 110 calories, 11g of protein, leaslgof carbohydrates and are fully fortified with 20Pthe RDI for
24 Essential Vitamins and Minerals. These new bars ailalsiean Chocolate, Chocolate Mint, Peanut Butter, @atlnRaisin,
Cinnamon Roll, Strawberry Crunch, Caramel, Lemon, Fruitu&, Bnd Smores flavors.

MARKETING

In 2008, the Company continued to build and leverage its codifddebrand through multiple marketing strategies to its
target audiences. Customer acquisition strategies inclatienal advertising in print magazines, television comaks,cweb
advertising, direct mailings, radio commercials, andt€xlimonials. In addition, the Company executed strategidcprgbhtions
efforts to secure local and national editorial placesyantaise brand awareness. These mediums were usegetortew customers
by stressing Medifast's quick, easy and safe approach ghtwaanagement. The Company invested in two celebrity ctsinéth
preliminary marketing and media campaigns launching in late 26@7eatending into 2009. Direct mail campaigns, e-malil
newsletters and outbound calling programs were utilized ttivate, encourage and support existing customers. Meddashued
to enhance the Medifast website including adding features itMp&ledifast” community which offers meal planning, commuynit
message boards, blogs and a robust library of informafitle. Company also continued to feature customer blogs on tstevéor
potential customers to interact with loyal Medifast cugien Late in 2007, the Company launched an auto ship loyaltyapnog
where customers receive discounts and rewards with autostapments of Medifast Meals on a monthly basis. hBibie
MyMedifast community enhancements and Auto-ship programs coetribuhe retention of Medifast customer through improved
compliance with the program.
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SALES
The Company's Sales division handles three primary areas:

Physician Sales - The sales team is responsible fopgrtisg medical accounts, clinics, hospitals, and HMOstinD 2008, the
sales team attended a number of medical professional trads, shitich expanded Medifast's penetration of the medicalhiviigs
business segment.

Medifast Weight Control Center Franchises - The brigk mortar clinics have Counselors that sell Medifast ptsdared full service
programs which include weekly one-on-one counseling sessiodscahenonitoring and physician oversight. Franchise salels se
qualified partners to develop defined market territories.

International - Sales manages our bulk export businessasnegsponsibility to qualify and develop new international kasin
partners.

MANUFACTURING

Jason Pharmaceuticals, Inc., the Company’s wholly owned awatifg subsidiary, produces over 80% of the Medifast
products in a state-of-the-art food and pharmaceutical-deadity in Owings Mills, Maryland. Management purchashke plant in
July 2002 for $3.4 million. The Company has also investeddmeasing production capacity with the purchase of two additio
manufacturing lines and a larger capacity blender. The hiaes significantly improved the Company's production capabilityle
also improving its overall efficiencies.

The manufacturing facility has the capacity for significamireases to its production output with minimal capital
expenditures. Adding additional shifts will enable the Camgta produce enough products to generate over $250 millioneis. sal

Manufacturing processes, product labeling, quality control esuipment are subject to regulations and inspections
mandated by the Food & Drug Administration (FDA), the MarylatateSDepartment of Health and Hygiene, and the Baltimore
County Department of Health. The plant strictly adheresllt&MP practices and has maintained its status as an (Otthodox
Union) kosher-approved facility since 1982.

GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION HISTORY

The formulation, processing, packaging, labeling and advertifinige Company's products are subject to regulation by
several federal agencies, but principally by the Food amgy Bdministration (the "FDA"). The Company must complyhwihe
standards, labeling and packaging requirements imposed by the Fihe fmarketing and sale of foods and nutritional supplements.
Applicable regulations prevent the Company from representinigsiliterature and labeling that its products produce catere
medicinal effects or possess drug-related charactsristithe FDA could, in certain circumstances, require tfamelation of
certain products to meet new standards, require the recdlsapntinuation of certain products not capable of refortioulaor
require additional record keeping, expanded documentation of therpes of certain products, expanded or different labeting,
scientific substantiation. If the FDA believes thedurcts are unapproved drugs or food additives, the FDA magtenisimilar
enforcement proceedings. Any or all such requirements cduktsely affect the Company's operations and its finanmieliton.

To the extent that sales of foods and nutritional supplemesysconstitute improper trade practices or endanger tagy saf
of consumers, the operations of the Company may also becstbjthe regulations and enforcement powers of the Feliardd
Commission ("FTC"), and the Consumer Product Safety Cosionis The Company's activities are also regulated bipus
agencies of the states and localities in which the Compprhicts are sold. The Company's products are manufactured and
packaged in accordance with customers’ specifications and rsdéat their private labels both domestically and in foreign cmstr
through independent distribution channels.

PRODUCT LIABILITY AND INSURANCE

The Company, like other producers and distributors of ingestatligts, faces an inherent risk of exposure to product
liability claims in the event that, among other thindg® tise of its products results in injury. The Company mamstaisurance
against product liability claims with respect to the prosluttmanufactures. With respect to the retail and dineatketing
distribution of products produced by others, the Company's prinfdpal of insurance consists of arrangements with each of its
suppliers of those products to name the Company as beneficiasch of such vendor's product liability insurance policiese
Company does not buy products from suppliers who do not masntelincoverage.
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EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2008, the Company employed 290 full-time engdpgéwhom 156 were engaged in manufacturing,
warehouse management, and shipping, and 134 in marketing, ddatiir@s call center and corporate support functions. biiee
employees are subject to a collective bargaining aggaewith the Company.

INFORMATION SYSTEMS INFRASTRUCTURE

Our website, which is based on internally developed softamdenther third party software, is hosted in San Fremcis
California at a ServePath co-location facility. Thasifity provides redundant network connections, an uninteblegtiower supply,
physical and fire security and diesel generated power lafde the equipment on which our website relies upon. Our iseavel our
network are monitored 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

We use a variety of security techniques to protect ourdzmtfal customer data. When our customers place an ardecess
their account information, we use a secure server (83kansfer information. Our secure server software etell information
entered before it is sent to our server. All customeridgieotected against unauthorized access. We uselRP&gpiSign and
HackerSafe software to secure our credit card transacti

OTHER MATTERS

An Independent Committee of the Board of Directors of Metifvas constituted to review the public allegationstbire
party "Convicted Felon" on his website pertaining to alteijjegal activities of Take Shape for Life, a Dir8elling Subsidiary of
Medifast Inc. Other public Direct Selling Companies hawntatacked by this individual and his network of associaties the
same blueprint of allegations. These public allegaticerewade in mid- February and were immediately followesidpyificant
short selling and short selling option puts that shaved$8@million from the Market Capitalization of Medifash& company has
demanded that this third party take down its website infioma&ontaining false information or be subject to approptiegal action.

Medifast, in a press release on Februafﬁl, PD09, responded to the False Claims in SEC File # 001-315@8#69617581. The
Independent Committee appointed Chairman is Mr. Barrydddeff, CPA, an officer and director with Gorfine, Siehi& Gardyn,
PA. Members are: Mr. George J. Lavin Esq, founding Padfrite law firm, Lavin, O’Neil, Ricci, Ceprone & Digo, who is an
expert in Product Liability Law, Lt. Gen. Dennis M. McCGartUSMC (Ret.), Executive Director of the Reserve @iffs Association
of the United States and a licensed attorney, Cappid3. Calderone USNR (Ret.), chaplain and counseloedfittanova
University Law School, and Mr. Charles P. Connolly, farfAeesident and CEO of First Union Corp.

After an investigation of the facts and information depetbto date the committee unanimously agreed that thatilieg were
false, misleading and or without merit.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

All periodic and current reports, registration statemertide of conduct, code of ethics and other materiathtb&ompany is
required to file with the Securities and Exchange ComonisgiSEC”), including the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Formah,amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant t
Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the4'2@B Reports”). These materials are available ffezharge through
the Company’s investor relations page at www.ChooseMedifas Such documents are available as soon as reasonablgaiyiact
after electronic filing of the material with the SE@Q€TCompany’s Internet web site and the information contaivezdinh or
connected thereto are not intended to be incorporated intarthisal Report on Form 10-K. The Company will furnish without
charge a copy of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, imgutie financial statements and schedules thereto, to espnpe
requesting in writing and stating that he or she is theftma owner of Common Shares of the Company.

Requests and inquiries should be addressed to:

Investor Relations
Medifast, Inc.

11445 Cronhill Dr.
Owings Mills, MD 21117
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CERTIFICATIONS

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finan©ficer have filed their certifications as requiredtbg
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) regardanquahlity of the Company’s public disclosure for each opméods
ended during the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 20@&asftectiveness of internal control over financigloring as
of December 31, 2008 and 2007. Further the Company’s ChiefittweeOfficer has certified to the New York Stock Exchange
(“NYSE”) that he is not aware of any violation by the @amy of the NYSE corporate governance listing standardsgased by
Section 303A.12(a) of the NYSE listing standards.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

Name Age Position

Bradley T. MacDonald 61  Chairman of the Board of Directors

Michael S. McDevitt 30 chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Leo V. Williams 61 Executive Vice President

Margaret MacDonald- Sheetz 31 Chief Operating Officer and President

Brendan N. Connors 31 Vice President of Finance

Bradley T. MacDonald

Mr. MacDonald became Chairman of the Board of Medifast on January 28, 1998. Mr. MacDonald was previously
employed by the Company as its Chief Executive OfficenfBeptember 1996 to March 200 2006, Mr. MacDonald was named
“Entrepreneur of the Year” in consumer products for tlaéeStf Maryland. Prior to joining the Company, he was apedias
Program Director of the U.S. Olympic Coin Progranthef Atlanta Centennial Olympic Games. From 1991 through 1384nel
MacDonald returned to active duty to be Deputy Direatal @hief Financial Officer of the Retail, Food, Hosliiyeand Recreation
Businesses for the United States Marine Corps. Pricetthevlr. MacDonald served as Chief Operating Offidehe Bonneau
Sunglass Company, President of Pennsylvania Optical Carn@meand CEO of MacDonald and Associates, which had major
financial interests in retail drug, consumer candy, ara pilnglass companies. Mr. MacDonald was national presidi¢he Marine
Corps Reserve Officers Association and retired froenthited States Marine Corps Reserve as a Colod€l9w, after 27 years of
service. He was appointed and served on the Defense AdBieard for Employer Support of the Guard and Resd&E@&&R.) Mr.
MacDonald serves on the Board of Directors of Stevebliwversity in Maryland, and the Institute of Notre DanighHSchool,
Baltimore, Maryland. He is also the Vice-Chairman onBbaerd of Directors of the Marine Corps Reserve Toyd ots Foundation.

Michael S. McDevitt

Mr. McDevitt joined Medifast in 2002 as the Controller arasypromoted to Vice President of Finance in January 2004. In
March 2005, he was promoted to President and in January of 200seasamed Chief Financial Officer. In March of 2007, Mr.
McDevitt was promoted to CEO of the Company. Priordiaipng Medifast, Mr. McDevitt worked as a Financial Analfar the
Blackstone Group, an investment advisory firm based in Xexnk, NY.

Leo V. Williams

Mr. Williams became Executive Vice President of Masiif Inc. in January of 2004. Prior to joining Medifast, he wa
Future Vehicles Marketing Plans Director for Ford Dimssport utility vehicles and pickup trucks. A retired MariCorps Reserve
major general, he was ordered to active duty from Oct2B@2 to September 2003 to serve as Deputy Director of thiedvi@orps
Combat Development Command. Mr. Williams served as tbe-@hairman of the Board, Marine Corps Toys for Tagrfeation.
Currently, he serves on the Board of Directors of thedDBelling Association, U.S. Naval Academy Foundation,ylad Chapter
of the American Diabetes Association, Naval Academy Alufssiociation Board of Trustees, Board of Trustees fotthigersity of
the District of Columbia, and on the Navy Mutual Aid Asation Board.

Margaret MacDonald - Sheetz, MBA

Ms. Sheetz joined Medifast in 2000 as the Director ¢ésSand Administration. In 2002 she was promoted to VP of
Operations and in 2004 promoted to Senior VP of Operatiomdajnof 2006, Ms. Sheetz received an Executive MBA from Layol
University. In March 2007, she was promoted to President hied Gperating Officer of Medifast Inc.

Brendan N. Connors, CPA
Mr. Connors joined Medifast as the Vice President of FimancApril of 2005. Prior to joining Medifast, Mr. Connors
worked as a Senior Accountant at Wolf & Company P.C.rtified public accounting and consulting firm in Boston, MA.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors should be considered when readiisgAhnual Report on Form 10-K. If any of the events
described below occurs, the Company'’s financial conditioropedating results could be adversely affected.

Much of our growth and future profitability depends on the effectiveness of our advertising spent in the Egict to consumer
channel.

Our marketing expenditures may not result in increasezhtevor generate sufficient awareness of the prograhne or
brand to the consumer. We may not be able to manage a@itisidg spend in a cost effective manner thereby incrgaise cost to
acquire a new customer to an elevated level that willedser profits.

We may be subject to health related claims from our cstomers

A customer that suffers health problems may allege liedttedifast program contributed to the ailment. Then@any is
not currently the subject of any such claims; however, addwdefend ourselves vigorously agaissth accusationdRegardless of
the ultimate outcome, defending against such claims woutddily and could adversely affect our results of operations

A competitor or new entrant into the market may devebp a product and program similar to ours

Many of our competitors are significantly larger than ng lsave more financial resources to develop new products and
programs. Our business could be affected if one of aupetitors or a new entrant to the market develops simitatucts and
programs through similar marketing channels. This couldtreslower sales as well as pricing competition whiobld adversely
affect the Company’s results from operations.

New fad diets or pharmaceutical solutions could put uat a competitive disadvantage

The weight loss industry is subject to fad diets. Then&tkraze hit the U.S. several years ago and had attmop many
weight loss companies. Another fad diet could sweepatien or consumer preferences could change. Our failadatot or
respond quickly enough to these changes could have an advecs®afbur results of operations. In addition, pharmaceutical
companies are constantly trying to develop safe, effeciiugs that lead to weight loss. If successful, mangdieould perceive
this to be easier than the Medifast program and this wautlds at a competitive disadvantage.

Our ability to compete could be negatively affected ithe event we fail to protect our brand names, trademas or
other intellectual property

Because our business relies heavily on direct to consuodgls, brand awareness is an important factor in o sale
strategy. Failure to protect our brand or maintaimaage of good standing with the public could result in a hegeffect on our
operations. Additionally, failure to protect our intetlesl property could result in the arrival of a similar gatitor which could
reduce our competitive edge or decrease our market share.

The business may grow too quickly for the current infastructure to handle

If our advertising is extremely successful and our Take Sleajtéfe relationship marketing division sees a langéick in
recruitment we may be unable to handle the growth frompanational perspective. Increasing demands on our infrastwould
cause long hold times in the call center as well as delagsir website. In addition, there could be delays inrgnaEessing,
packaging and shipping. We could run out of a majority ofrotentory if growth exceeded our production capacity. Ifehes
difficulties are encountered in a period of hyper-growth theroperating results could suffer.

Any deficiencies or shortcomings in our information echnology could prevent an efficient execution of route business
procedures

We rely heavily on our IT infrastructure to support mé&jesiness components. Any disruption to the integrity of this
support structure including but not limited to; software caemunications, Electronic Resource Platform, or theimdtion
Technology architecture as a whole could severely limiability to provide customers and vendors with adequatecseavid
operating responses. In addition, our financial reportingéitly correlated with our company-wide software Microdévision
4.0. Any compromise in the veracity of this system coaleteely alter the accuracy of our tracking, volumes, andrgereporting
including financial statements.
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A disruption in the supply of raw materials or the inability of third party manufacturing for certain produc ts could affect
operating results

We rely heavily on our vendors to provide quality raw maleifor us to utilize in our on-site manufacturing preess Any
disruption in the availability of these materials couldeptitilly interrupt our ability to provide certain produttisustomers in a
timely manner. Also certain products are currently manurfad through a third party. The availability of thesedoicts is prone to
fluctuations dependent on the manufacturer’s ability to semdagroduce a quality product that satisfies our satisfastiomards.

Our stock price may experience volatility due to fluctiations in our operating results

Our stock price is subject to fluctuations in responsit@perating results, a competitor’'s operating resoitsur ability
to meet stock analysts forecasts and our yearly revenlERS guidance. In addition, general trends in the weaghtihdustry as a
whole can have an affect on our stock price. These factay have an adverse affect on the market price of ez ahd cause it to
fluctuate significantly.

Since we cannot exert the same level of influence @ontrol over our independent health coaches as we cdulvere they our
own employees, our health coaches could fail to congphith our policies and procedures, which could reduin claims against
us that could harm our financial condition and operatng results.

Our health coaches are independent contractors and, accgrdiagire not in a position to directly provide the saimection,
motivation and oversight as we would if health coachee wer own employees. As a result, there can be nceassuthat our
health coaches will participate in our marketing strategigsans, accept our introduction of new products, or comqjily our health
coach policies and procedures.

Extensive federal, state and local laws regulate our lsssipeoducts and direct selling program. While we irapéemented
health coach policies and procedures designed to govern thdirat@nd to protect the trademarks and brand of the Conpaany i
be difficult to enforce these policies and procedures beazfube large number of health coaches and their indepestdars.
Violations by our independent health coaches of applicabl@laf our policies and procedures in dealing with custeroeuld
reflect negatively on our products and operations and barrbusiness reputation. In addition, it is possible that @ coufd hold us
civilly or criminally accountable based on vicarious ligpbecause of the actions of our independent healtthesac

We may be subject to claims that our employees are gunalified to provide weight loss counseling

Our Medifast Weight Control center division provides maldissessments and counseling to our customers. We may be
subject to claims that our employees lack the propeiirigaand qualifications to provide proper advice regardinghidoss. We
could be subject to claims if an employee in one of oarcsligives inappropriate weight loss advice that resuligalth problems.
Such claims could result in damage to our reputation anld bave an affect on our operating results.

Adverse publicity associated with our products, ingrdients, or sales channels, or those of similar compis, could harm our
financial condition, operating results, and stock prie.

Adverse publicity, whether or not accurate, relating éo@ompany, our products or our operations, our sales chamukls
independent health coaches could adversely impact the Comfimagsal condition, operating results, and stock price. titiad,
it could lead to lawsuits or other legal challenges anttlanegatively impact our reputation, the market demanduiopmducts, or
our general business.

Negative publicity in the weight loss industry could adersely affect our business

If the press were to come out with negative media abautédorie diets, meal replacements, or soy protémdbuld harm
our business. Even if not directed at Medifast, this péimrecould be instilled in our target market and cause bawuar operating
results.
The loss of key personnel could adversely affect oability to operate and result in a negative financial ondition

Certain members of our Company oversee integral compookeots Company. Although we do not anticipate the

departure of any key employees including but not limited texeeutive management team, we cannot guarantee thei tenu
indefinitely in the future.
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Our results of operations may decline as a result @ downturn in general economic conditions or consumezonfidence

Our results of operations are highly dependent on productaalgsrogram fees. A downturn in general economic conditions
or consumer confidence and spending in any of our major rearteld result in people curtailing their discretionary gjyen
which, in turn, could lead to a decrease in product salesriMedifast Direct and Take Shape for Life divisions add@aease in
product and program fees at our Medifast Weight Controleéfeand Internet product subscriptions. Any such reductiordwoul
adversely affect our results of operations.

Our Business is subject to regulatory and legislativeestrictions

A number of laws and regulations govern our production, operatmhadvertising. The FTC and certain states regulate
advertising, disclosures to consumers, privacy, consunengor billing arrangements, and other consumer mattersdifaet
selling distribution channel is subject to risk of interpgietaof certain laws pertaining to the prevention of “pyrdihar “chain sale”
schemes. Although we believe we are in full complianceayldiibe governing body alter or enforce the law in an ucipated way,
there may be a negative result on the company’s operalibasCompany’s financial reporting is subject to variemgsland
regulations as well, specifically, the Sarbanes-Oxleyof2002 and the SEC. These requirements demand the Compdaogedisc
certain information and maintain specific controls to em$air and legal accounting practices as outlined thefeim.Company has
taken substantial measures to ensure compliance througtermi¢éimal and external audits. Failure to correct amysfia internal
controls may constitute a public notification of weaknegs@uld have an adverse effect on our stock price. Additypitze
Company is required to maintain a position of good standinggards to taxation on both a Federal and State [Eaitlire to comply
with federal and state regulations could result in additi@o@s, fines, or interest due that could financiallyistitee company.
Future laws and regulations could be unforeseen and potghtatt a material negative impact on the Company. Editucomply
with any regulations of current or future authoritatinétees could have a detrimental effect on the Company sifiahstanding or
operating results

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

The Company owns a 49,000 square-foot facility in Owings Millaryland, which contains its Corporate Headquarters
and manufacturing plant. In 2003, the Company purchased a stateaof-thE9,000 square-foot distribution facility in Ridgely,
Maryland. The facility gives the Company the abilitytstribute over $250 million of Medifast product sales paryeln 2004, the
Company purchased a 3,000 square foot conference and trainlitg fa€cean City, Maryland. The facility will be useddonduct
corporate training meetings, Board of Director Meetingd employee morale and wellness prograribie Company has twenty
leases for its corporately owned Medifast Weight Cdrdiinics throughout Florida and Texas. In addition, the Compeases a
building in Owings Mills, MD for corporate offices. Theases range in terms from one to six years.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Leonard Z. Sotomeyor, on December 30, 2003, filed anmaictithe Supreme Court of the State of New York,
County of New York, against his former business parfbavjd Scheffler, and T-1 Holdings, LLC, and included Medjfbe. ,
formerly Heathrite, Inc., as a Defendant, Case 604076-8Bingemonetary damages for failure of his former businedsgydo
compensate him under several consulting agreements wittidgiedinc. made with H-T Capital, Inc. and derivativetybehalf of T-
1Holdings, LLC. All parties, including Medifast, Inc. estly reached a global settlement including dismissdieofitigation with
prejudice and general releases. On October 17, 2008, Mteglifeeed to pay legal fees in the amount of $130,000 inaadhi4,286
shares of Medifast treasury stock valued at $70,000 te #attcase. Mr. Sotomayor also received 29,647 Madifec. warrants
with a strike price of $4.80 a share from Mr. David SfteefThe Board of Directors approved a settlementilzest considered
significantly less costly than the future litigation tsofor defense. Medifast vehemently denied the allebadges in the complaint
and had fortuitous defenses that it believes would havaifgdyn a trial. The total impact of the settlemeniedifast, Inc. was a
one time charge to earnings of approximately $200,000 in thih fouarter of 2008.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Not applicable
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKH OLDER MATTERS.

(a) The Company's Common Stock has been quoted under the symbasivECDecember 20, 2002. The old symboal,
MDFT, had been traded since February 5, 2001. The common stioallesl on the New York Stock Exchange. The following is a
list of the low and high closing prices by fiscal quarter 2008 and 2007:

2008
Low High
Quarter ended March 31, 2008 ................... 3.68 4.99
Quarter ended June 30, 2008 .................... 4.35 6.68
Quarter ended September 30, 2008............... 4.80 8.85
Quarter ended December 31, 2008 ................ 3.52 6.79
2007
Low High
Quarter ended March 31, 2007 ................... 6.03 12.40
Quarter ended June 30, 2007 .................... 6.32 9.25
Quarter ended September 30, 2007............... 5.58 8.83
Quarter ended December 31, 2007 ................ 3.79 6.24

(b) The quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, withoutilretark-up, markdown or commissions and may not represent
actual transactions.

(c) There were approximately 208 record holders of the Congpp@wmmon Stock as of March 13, 2009. This number
does not include beneficial owners of our securities hefdémame of nominees. The Company had no preferred holders
of the Company's stock as of December 31, 2008.

(d) No dividends on common stock were declared by the Conthamg 2008 or 2007.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected condensed consolidated financial data seb&ath should be read in conjunction with “Management’s l&ision and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsiuded as Part Il, ltem 7 of this Annual Report on Form 18+ the
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto abthpany included in Part I Item 8 of this Annual ReporForm 10-K.
The historical results provided below are not necegsadicative of future results.

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Revenue 105,445,000 83,779,000 74,086,000 40,129,000 27,340,000
Operating income 8,199,000 5,715,000 7,381,000 3,549,000 3,004,000
Income from continuing operations 7,850,000 5,543,000 7,463,000 3,405,0002,906,000
EPS - basic 0.41 0.30 0.41 0.17 0.16
EPS - diluted 0.38 0.28 0.38 0.17 0.14
Total assets 51,037,000 43,724,000 36,677,000 30,120,000 25,968,000
Current portion of long-term debt and revolving credit
facilities 3,421,000 1,863,000 1,804,000 1,194,000 827,000
Total long-term debt 4,313,000 4,570,000 3,509,000 3,977,000 4,256,000
Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 13,126,534 12,960,930 12,699,066 12,258,734 10,832,360

Diluted 14,329,525 13,644,149 13,482,894 12,780,959 12,413,424
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains forward-looking statements which mahiexknown and unknown risks, uncertainties and other
factors that may cause Medifast, Inc. actual results arfdrmance in future periods to be materially differeafrany future results
or performance suggested by these statements. Medifastcdutions investors not to place undue reliance on fodwakéihg
statements, which speak only to management's expectatitins date.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared imdarae with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. O
significant accounting policies are described in Note 2®tbnsolidated financial statements.

The preparation of these financial statements requireagearent to make estimates and assumptions that affeeptiréed
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosur@wfiegent assets and liabilities at the date of the fiahstatements, and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reportiody pdginagement develops, and changes periodically, these
estimates and assumptions based on historical experiethag avarious other factors that are believed to benedéde under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from thesienesés under different assumptions or conditions. Managemesiders the
following accounting estimates to be the most criticglrgparing our consolidated financial statements. Theseataccounting
estimates have been discussed with our audit committee

Revenue RecognitiorRevenue is recognized net of discounts, rebates, promaidjoatments, price adjustments, returns and other
potential adjustments upon shipment and passing of risle tcutomer and when estimates of are reasonably deteleninab
collection is reasonably assured and the Company has herfperformance obligations.

Impairment of Fixed Assets and Intangible AsseWe continually assess the impairment of long-liveskts whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying valine aefssets may not be recoverable. Judgments regardingsteeee of
impairment indicators are based on legal factors, madketittons and our operating performance. Future events cauke us to
conclude that impairment indicators exist and the carmages of fixed and intangible assets may be impaired. ésuyitmg
impairment loss would be limited to the value of netdimad intangible assets.

Income Taxedn the preparation of consolidated financial statem#émsCompany estimates income taxes based on diverse
legislative and regulatory structures that exist irsflidtions where the Company conducts business. Deferred inarrassets and
liabilities represent tax benefits or obligations #rdde from temporary differences due to differing treatroénertain items for
accounting and income tax purposes. The Company evaluateedéfx assets each period to ensure that estimated faxable
income will be sufficient in character amount and timingegult in their recovery. A valuation allowance is bkshed when
management determines that it is more likely than notthaferred tax asset will not be realized to reduceadbets to their
realizable value. Considerable judgments are requirestableshing deferred tax valuation allowances and iessssg probable
exposures related to tax matters. The Company’s tax rettgrsibject to audit and local taxing authorities thaldcohallenge the
company's tax positions. The Company believes it recordsratidtdoses such potential tax liabilities as appropaatehas
reasonably estimated its income tax liabilities and re@dle tax assets.

Allowance for doubtful accountdn determining the adequacy of the allowance for doubtfidunts, we consider a number of
factors including the aging of the receivable portfolicstomer payment trends, and financial condition of the custonaistry
conditions and overall credibility of the customer. Actralounts could differ significantly from our estimates.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
2008 COMPARISON WITH 2007

OPERATING

Revenue: Revenue increased to $105.4 million in 2008 as comp&#@&8.8 million in 2007, an increase of $21.6 million or 26%.
The Take Shape for Life sales channel accounted for 47&tabfevenue, direct response marketing 42%, brick-and-nebinics

8%, and doctors 3%. Take Shape for Life sales, whicfualed by person-to-person recruiting and support increas@é%yyear-
over-year. The Company's Medifast Weight Control €ealinic division , increased sales by 68% as compar28@7 due to the
opening of new clinics in 2008. The direct marketing sdtesrel, which is fueled primarily by consumer advertising;edesed
revenues by approximately 6% year-over year on less adtvgrgizend. The Company's doctor’s sales decreased by 24%reampa
to 2007 due to certain doctors transitioning to the prafeasdivision of Take Shape for Life.

The Take Shape for Life division grew 79% year-over-yddms growth can largely be attributed to the tools anditgithat led to

an increase in the ability of the division to both promgranth in recruiting of health coaches and acquisition ehts, as well as
better supporting this growth as it occurs. This continuedsitment proved to be a large part of the current growtidgran Take
Shape for Life sales, as well as the number of activkhheasaches and clients. The growth in this segmentledes directly to the
increase in health coaches, which began to acceletiteifg our National Convention in July 2008. The number of adtiealth
coaches grew 84% to 3,400 at the end of the fourth quarter ofa08@mpared to 1,850 for the same time period in 2007. The
Company completed our 2008 National Convention in Orlando, FLubn28", 2008 where approximately 750 health coaches
participated, an increase of nearly 88% from prior yd&e individuals that attended the event attended workshops andéetares

by accredited individuals in the areas of recruiting, prodndtnutrition knowledge, and business skills.

The Medifast Weight Control Centers, which represent appely 8% of the Company’s overall revenues, are curreptyating

in twenty locations in Dallas, Houston, and Orlando. In 2€@8Company experienced revenue growth of 68% versusrtteetisae
period last year. The average monthly revenue per clinicwaisiessed growth of 6%, averaging $38,000 per clinicOd82as
compared to $36,000 in 2007. In the expanding Dallas, TX ménkesverage monthly revenue per clinic is approximately $50,000
In the estimated $40 billion weight loss and health living imgiugite brick and mortar clinic model has always made ugrdfisant
portion of overall sales. The recent growth in the MedlifVeight Control Centers has proven that the model iglindemand from

a select portion of the weight loss consumers. Througheuyehr, the Company invested in the infrastructure ofif& enodel.

The major aspects of the investment in this division inclaeexpanded support team, the creation of a point of satarsya robust
customer data tracking system, and finalizing the franctppertunity documentation. During 2008, the Company opened eight
additional corporately owned clinics in the Houston, TX mizakel two additional centers in the Dallas, TX market.

On February 18, 2008, the Company announced that it has sold itafichise of Medifast Weight Control Centers. The Camgpa
sold the rights to open four clinics in the Greater Baltemidletropolitan Area. The franchisee also has the rightspém four
additional Medifast Weight Control Centers in the Baltienarea over the next two years, bringing the totalgbtdocations. On
June 3, 2008 the Company announced that it sold the rights to opévefdiiast Weight Control Centers in Southern California and
three Medifast Weight Control Centers in Central Califorto two different local business operators. On Octob&088, the
Company announced the opening of its first franchise clintbenBaltimore, MD area. In December 2008, three Medifésight
Control Center franchise locations opened in Southern @alf@and one location opened in Central California. At Decer@bge
2008, five franchise locations were in operation.

Overall, selling, general and administrative expensesdsete by $15.3 million as compared to 2007. Take Shape for Life
commission expense, which is completely variable based @venue, increased by approximately $10.1 million as the Company
showed sales growth of 79% as compared to 2007. Saladdseaefits increased by approximately $2 million in 2008. Thedrere
includes the hiring of additional expertise in criticada® such as Take Shape for Life and the Medifast WeighttadC&enters to
support the strong growth in 2008 and beyond. Also, additionadpebwere hired in the call center during the first armbrse
quarters of 2008 as the Company brought the outsourced Take Shkipe éaifl center in-house early in the second quarter of 2008.
Going forward, savings will be realized on communication es@ers a result of bringing the call center in-house. opleming of
eight new corporately owned clinics in the Houston, TX maakettwo in the Dallas, TX market also required the hioingdditional
center managers and support staff.  Advertising experig0B was approximately $17.8 million compared to approximately $18.
million for the same period last year, a decrease of $600,06Mmunication expense decreased by $200,000 as a result okéhe Ta
Shape for Life call center moving in-house during the secpradter of 2008.  Other expenses increased by $2.4 million which
included items such as depreciation, amortization, cradit processing fees, charitable contributions, and propess.teDperating
expenses increased by $950,000 which primarily resulted from adtipdnéing expense for our direct to consumer postcard
mailings and Take Shape for Life printed material, as w&slimaintenance, repairs, and supplies for our manufacturing and
distribution facilities. Office expenses increased by $300,000stutk compensation expense increased by $225,000 as additional
restricted shares were issued to key executives and Bmanibers in the third and fourth quarters of 2008.
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Costs and Expenses Cost of revenue increased $3.9 nolig25t3 million in 2008 from $21.5 million in 2007. As a percgataf
sales, gross margin increased to 75.9% in 2008 from 7#.2807. The margin improved due to efficiencies gaineah inew
machinery purchases in prior year, new shipping rulesebatted in additional shipping revenue from customers nettiamst
shipping expense, as well as a price increase on July 1, 2008

Other Income/Expense: Other expense increased from a $172 2007 to $349,000 at December 31, 2008. The $177,000 increase
in other expense resulted primarily from realized los$e®2%6,000 on the Company’s equity investment portfolio managed b
Merrill Lynch due to the weakness of the stock market in 20aBer@ncome/expense consists of interest expense on déaix,qy
losses on the sale of equity investments, dividends améshien equity and bond investments, and interest paymeatgsagon the

CCS note receivable. In 2007, the Company also realized intteene when it exercised a stock warrant from a formeinbss
partner, and realized a loss on disposal of assetsigelatthe closing of three Medifast Weight Control Cesite

Income taxes In 2008, we recorded $2,415,000 in income tax expense which reprsaifsctive rate of 30.8%In the fourth
quarter of 2008, the Company amended prior year tax retuprsperly roll forward prior net operating losses fot purposes which
resulted in a $162,000 tax refund receivable at December 3., 0@ effective rate would have been 32.8% without thefibehe
the tax refund. In 2007, we recorded $1,706,000 in income tansxpehich represents an annual effective rate of 30.8ke
Company anticipates a tax rate of approximately 35-37% in 2009.

Net income: Net income was $5.4 million in 2008 as comp#we$i3.8 million in 2007, an increase of 42%. The improved
profitability during 2008 is due to sales growth in the Takep® for Life division and Medifast Weight Control Centewsd gross
margin improvement.

SEGMENT RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales by Segment as of December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Segments Sales % of Total Sales % of Total Sales % of Total
Medifast 97,116,000 92% 78,861,000 94% 70,181,000 95%
All Other 8,329,000 8% 4,918,000 6% 4,015,000 5%
Eliminations 0% 0% (110,000) 0%
Total Sales 105,445,000 100% 83,779,000 100% 74,086,000 00%1

2008 vs. 2007

Medifast Segment: The Medifast reporting segment cansishe sales of Medifast Direct, Take Shape for, lafed Doctors. As
this represents the majority of our business this iseeéed to the “Consolidated Results of Operations” managediseussion for
2008 vs. 2007 above.

All Other Segment: The All Other reporting segment sie®f the sales from Hi-Energy and Medifast Weight @bi@enters.
Sales increased by $3,411,000 year-over year due to the opéténgnew centers throughout 2008, including eight centers i
Houston, TX and two centers in Dallas, TX. The Dall@market continues to mature with the average clipicerating
approximately $50,000 per month in sales. The Company is cofittufocus on improved advertising effectiveness, improved
closing rates on walk-in sales, as well as the hiringafe experienced clinic. At the end of 2008, there weeatiywcorporately
owned centers opened as compared to ten centers at the288¥. In addition, the Company began franchising the Mstdifa
Weight Control Center model in 2008. At the end of 2008gthere five franchise centers in operation.

2007 vs. 2006

Medifast Segment: The Medifast reporting segment cansishe sales of Medifast Direct, Take Shape for, lafed Doctors. As
this represents the majority of our business this iseeéed to the “Consolidated Results of Operations” managediseussion for
2007 vs. 2006 above.

All Other Segment: The All Other reporting segment sie®f the sales from Hi-Energy and Medifast Weight @bi@enters.

Sales increased by $903,000 year-over year as a resultrafraase in Medifast Weight Control Centers sales of $1,01384les
to Hi-Energy licensees decreased by $110,000 as fewer IHipHieensee clinics remain in operation as cliniasveot to Medifast
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Weight Control Centers. The increase in Medifast Weiginit©l Center's sales was due to a renewed focus on thastapaf the
corporate clinics, spending increases for advertising,aserkadvertising effectiveness, improved closing rategatk-in sales, as
well as the hiring of more experienced clinic operatormanage the clinics. There were ten clinics opelmea¢id of 2007 as
compared to twelve at the end of 2006.

Net Profit by Segment as of December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Segments Profit % of Total Profit % of Total Profit % of Total
Medifast 8,104,000 149% 5,937,000 155% 6,218,000 121%
All Other (2,669,000) -49% (2,100,000) -55% (952,000) %18
Eliminations 0% 0% (110,000) -2%
Net Profit 5,435,000 100% 3,837,000 100% 5,156,000 100%

2008 vs. 2007

Medifast Segment: The Medifast reporting segment cangighe profits of Medifast Direct, Take Shape for L#ad Doctors. As
this represents the majority of our business this iseeéed to the “Consolidated Results of Operations” managediseussion for
2008 vs. 2007 above. See footnote 17, “Business Segmenéstiétailed breakout of expenses.

All Other Segment: The All Other reporting segment céssi§ the losses of Hi-Energy, Medifast Weight Controht€es, and
corporate expenses related to the parent company operatiee-over-year, the loss in the All Other segmenteased by
$569,000. The Hi-Energy and Medifast Weight Control Centersesd an increase in net profitability year-over-year of $339,000.
The increase in profitability was due to improved profitighin established centers. During the year, ten nemters were opened

and should have a positive impact on 2009 earnings. Medifgsbi@te expenses increased by $908,000 year-over-year. Corporate
expenses include items such as auditors’ fees, attorm@gsBoard of Director expenses, investor relationppcate consulting, and
corporate outings. In 2008, the Company had additional legal egassociated with the Sotomayor legal action that eelinta
$200,000 one time charge to earnings in the fourth quarter of 2868.Item 3 — Legal Proceedings on pagér more detail. In
addition, the Company had an increase in realized losses oy segliitrities in its investment account in the fourth quaft@008

due to the weakness in the stock market. See footnote UsineBs Segments” for a detailed breakout of expenses.

2007 vs. 2006

Medifast Segment: The Medifast reporting segment cangighe profits of Medifast Direct, Take Shape for L#ad Doctors. As
this represents the majority of our business this iseeéed to the “Consolidated Results of Operations” managediseussion for
2007 vs. 2006 above. See footnote 17, “Business Segmenéstiébailed breakout of expenses

All Other Segment: The All Other reporting segment sta®f the losses of Hi-Energy, Medifast Weight Con@ehters, and
corporate expenses related to the parent company operatieasover-year, the loss in the All Other segmeneased by
$1,148,000. Corporate expenses increased by $401,000, as efriesuéiased fees due to increased reporting requirenuertef
Company as a whole. These fees include, but are no¢dinatauditors’ fees, attorneys’ fees, board of direexpenses, investor
relations, corporate consulting, education and training, apo@de outings. Hi-Energy and Medifast Weight Control Center
expenses increased by $726,000 due to increased focus on openingdiéstWVeight Control clinics, hiring of experienced
personnel, increased advertising and developing the Franabiid. nSee footnote 17, “Business Segments” for a detaitsakout
of expenses.
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Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

As of December 31, 2008, our principal commitments consistelligations for variable and fixed rate loans detaifeNote
12 of the financial statements, operating leases for cglprowned Medifast Weight Control Centers detailedateM of the
financial statements, and copier equipment contracts fqoroitmg operation that support our marketing efforts.

The Company has the following contractual obligasias of December 31, 2008

Payments due by period

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total
Contractual Obligations
Total Debt 3,420,000 257,000 494,000 225,000 5,10 3,113,000 7,734,000
Operating Leases 926,000 819,000 776,000 676,000 227,000 - 3,424,000
Copier Equipment Service Contracts 399,000 355,000 334,000 283,000 - - 1,300
Total contractual obligations 4,745,000 1,480 1,604,000 1,184,000 452,000 3,113,000 ,5282000

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company had stockholders’ equity of $38,173,000 and workpitglcaf $12,669,000 on December 31, 2008
compared with $32,420,000 and $10,395,000 at December 31, 200¢tivespe The $5.8 million net increase in stockholder’s
equity reflects $5.4 million in 2008 profits as well asigguansactions as outlined in the “Consolidated Statéwfe@hanges in
Stockholders’ Equity and accumulated other comprehensive in¢ossg.” The Company’s cash and cash equivalents position
decreased from $2.2 million at December 31, 2007 to $1ldmélt December 31, 2008. The decrease is due to largetany
purchases in the fourth quarter of 2008 to include ten newreatement bars as well as an increase in inventeelsle
preparation for the “diet” season beginning in January 2008ddition, the Company’s capital expenditures increased by
approximately $2.3 million in 2008 as compared to 2007. In 2@@&at expenditures included the opening of ten new Medifast
Weight Control Centers, development of a point-of-sadéesy for the Clinics, development of a new web shoppirtfppta for the
direct response segment, new software system for der Slaape for Life division, ERP enhancements, and photensypgrades.

In September 2007, Medifast, Inc.’s wholly owned subsidiary JBearmaceuticals, Inc. increased its Secured Line of Credit
from $5 million to $7.5 million and moved the line of crediiri Mercantile Safe-Deposit and Trust to Merrill LyncleTline of
credit is at LIBOR plus 1.3 percent. The increased line Imeaysed to finance fixed assets, advertising, and inverftdfgdifast,

Inc. The Company currently has no off-balance sheet arramggme

In the year ended December 31, 2008 the Company generated casii $&#96,000 from operations, primarily attributable
to higher operating income. This was offset by net chainggserating assets and liabilities that decreased tasib§ $4,781,000.
The total use of cash from operations was $6,649,000. Tgestanse of cash was for the purchase of inventory. n@008,
inventory increased by $4.7 million. Inventory increased duritdncreased sales, introduction of ten new meal replatdraes
late in the fourth quarter of 2008 as well as the typicaltfioquarter inventory build-up in order to prepare for “dieser&in the
first quarter of 2009. Additional uses of cash included an iger@a prepaid taxes of $1.1 million, increase in other sissfet
$251,000, and a reduction in income taxes payable of $592,000. Thisffeetsby sources of cash from a decrease in accounts
receivable - $43,000, decrease in prepaid expenses - $693¢008ask in deferred compensation - $282,000, and an increase in
accounts payable - $850,000.

In the year ended December 31, 2008, net cash used in invasiviges was $7,313,000, which primarily consisted of the
purchase of property and equipment. The increase in property cuiginent relates to the building of a large amount of
infrastructure in 2008 to support growth. This included theniogeof ten new Medifast Weight Control Center locations,
development of a point-of-sale system for the MedifasigiteControl Centers, development of a new web shopping ptaffor the
direct response segment, new software system for our Sladgee for Life division, ERP enhancements, IT infrastredimrsupport
new systems, phone system upgrades, and leasehold improvememésiufacturing and distribution facilities to supporufet
growth.

23



In the year ended December 31, 2008, financing activities gede$4,463,000 in cash flow. Sources of cash included funds
drawn from the line of credit - $1.6 million, a decreasaates receivable - $132,000, and issuances of warrants amusaptercised
with cash - $32,000. This was offset by a use of cagieinepayment of long term debt - $264,000.

In pursuing its business strategy, the Company may requiréoaddlitash for operating and investing activities. The omg
expects future cash requirements, if any, to be fundeddparating cash flow and cash flow from financing actwiti

There are no current plans or discussions in processgeiatany material acquisition that is probable in thedeeable future.

2007 COMPARISON WITH 2006
OPERATING

Revenue: Revenue increased to $83.8 million in 2007 as contpas@d.1 million in 2006, an increase of $9.7 million or 13%e
direct marketing sales channel accounted for 56% of ®tehue, Take Shape for Life 33%, doctors 5%, and brick artdmaetnics
6%. The direct marketing sales channel, which is fugledarily by consumer advertising, increased revenues bysppately 3%
year-over year. Take Shape for Life sales, whicHuwsked by person-to-person recruiting and support increased by&a%6ver-
year. The Company’s doctor’s sales increased by 8% cothfm®906. The Company's clinic division which began operatimgr
the Medifast Weight Control Center name in late 2008eemed sales by 37% as compared to 2006.

The Take Shape for Life division grew 23% year-over-yéldiis growth can largely be attributed to the toolstaaiding that led to

an increase in the ability of the division to both prongstawth in recruiting of health coaches, as well asbstipporting this

growth as it occurs. This continued investment proved #lhege part of the current growth trends in Take Shafsftosales, as

well as the number of active health coaches. The nurfilbetiee health coaches grew to 1,850 at the end obthéhfquarter 2007
compared to 1,200 at the same time period in 2006, an inaea4%. This recent growth in health coaches was rgcebglerved in
July of 2007, with over 80% attendance growth at the 2007 NatBmralention compared to the attendance at the 2006 Convention.
The Company believes that the growth in health coachitgds a positive trend that should continue, and will leasignificant

revenue growth in the near future

The Medifast Weight Control Centers, which represent approeiynd®o of the Company’s overall revenues, are curremérating
in ten locations in Dallas and Orlando. In 2007, the Companyierped revenue growth of 37% versus the same time pasbd |
year. The average monthly revenue per clinic also vegeesignificant growth of 64%, averaging $36,000 per clmR007 as
compared to $22,000 in 2006. In the expanding Dallas, TX ménketverage monthly revenue per clinic is approximatedyChD.
In the estimated $40 billion weight loss and health living $trgu the brick and mortar clinic model has always made significant
portion of overall sales. Medifast has incorporatedrttadel with the creation of the Medifast Weight Controht@es. The recent
growth in this division has proven that the model is in highatel from a select portion of the weight loss consumene. Cbmpany
believes that with the recent industry launches of over-thatepand anticipated launches of prescription appetite supprressa
medications that this model will continue to grow. Thamefthroughout 2007, the Company invested in the infrastructute
clinic model. The major aspects of the investment mdhiision included an expanded executive team, the aneafti point of sale
system, a robust customer data tracking system, finaliaafranchise opportunity documentation, and the beginning sihges
expansion into several new locations. The Company bsliéiebusiness will be a major driver of revenues adfitgifor the
Medifast business as it continues to expand. The Company f continue the expansion of the Medifast Weight CoBenters
with both additional corporate locations as well as oftethe model through a franchise opportunity. The Comparpesing four
additional corporately owned clinics in the Houston, TX niablgethe end of the first quarter of 2008. In addition on Febri@,
2008, the Company announced that it has sold its first frandhidedifast Weight Control Centers. The Company soldittes to
open four clinics in the Greater Baltimore Metropolitaile® The franchisee also has the rights to open four audiedifast
Weight Control Centers in the Baltimore area ovemad two years, bringing the total to eight locations.

Overall, selling, general and administrative expensesaseteby $8.1 million as compared to 2006. The majority ofitrease was
due to investments in the Company’s future advertising camgaifpng with the necessary infrastructure support toctaw the
future campaigns to improve in effectiveness. Advertiskmense for 2007 was approximately $18.4 million compared to
approximately $14.3 million for the same period last yaatincrease of $4.1 million. In the prior year, the Comjmeemefited from
a substantial editorial placement in a major consumerqatiain at no cost to the Company.  During 2007, the Compasy
invested in multiple celebrity endorsement contractsedsas increased public relations expense to focus on Biegebrand
awareness that will benefit our future advertising cammzaigSalaries and benefits increased by approximately $1,500,2007 as
the Company hired additional expertise in critical areasdardo assist in future growth and meet regulatory ne€his primarily
includes IT, nutrition and product development, marketing, fdediVeight Control Centers, and Take Shape for Lifeke Shape
for Life commission expense, which is completely vagdidsed upon revenue, increased by approximately $2,400,000.
Communication expense which includes outsourced call catgersased by $50,000. The Company has spent a significant amount
of time and materials in 2007 building the future call eetfrastructure with related technology and personnel. ifbéstment will
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allow the call center to increase the percentage of tisingrcalls to be handled in-house. It is believedttatinitiative will

amount to significant savings and improved closing ratdseifuture. The reduction in outsourced call center expavibesntinue

in stages throughout 2008. Other expenses increased by $5%haf0included items such as depreciation, amortizatremjtc

card processing fees, charitable contributions, and proestyg. Stock compensation expense increased by $192,000 asecbtapar
2006 as stock awards vest over 5 and 6 year terms fartwesc These increases were offset by an approximately0kEbOecrease
in office expense and the absence of a $323,000 loss mgdfuttin the sale of the Consumer Choice Systems diviisitire first

quarter of 2006.

Costs and Expenses: Cost of revenue increased $3.3 rolg21.5 million in 2007 from $18.2 million in 2006. As a petege of
sales, gross margin remained at approximately 75% in 2007 @6d 20

Other Income/Expense: Other income/expense decreased frob®Cb&2,other income in 2006 to $172,000 in other expense at
December 31, 2007. Other income/expense consists of int&pEsise on debt, gains on the sale of equity investmentsssnte
payments received on the CCS note receivable, and overpayofieaxes. In 2007, the Company also realized other income itvhe
exercised a stock warrant from a former business padndryealized a loss on disposal of assets relating todbimg of three
Medifast Weight Control Centers.

Income taxes In 2007, we recorded $1,706,000 in income tax expense, whicheefges annual effective rate of 30.8%. In 2006,
we recorded income tax expense of $2,307,000 which reflectedienated annual effective tax rate of 30.9%. The Company
anticipates a tax rate of approximately 32-34% in 2008.

Net income: Net income was $3.8 million in 2007 as compiar&8.2 million in 2006, which reflected a decrease of $1lkomior
26%. The decrease was directly related to the initeitféhe Company to create its new advertising campaigmgndve future
capabilities to increase advertising effectiveness. Aatitly, the Company did not have the benefit of the no clisirial
publication that occurred in the first quarter of 2006 thatdesignificant profits.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company had stockholders’ equity of $32,420,000 and workpitglcaf $10,395,000 on December 31, 2007
compared with $27,916,000 and $9,612,000 at December 31, 2006, ivebpedtihe $4.5 million net increase in stockholder’s equity
reflects $3.8 million in 2007 profits as well as equignsactions as outlined in the “Consolidated Statement ofgekan
Stockholders’ Equity and accumulated other comprehensive in¢ossg.” The Company’s cash and cash equivalents position
increased from $1.1 million at December 31, 2006 to $2.2e¢@ber 31, 2006. The increase is due to improved salastin fo
quarter 2007 versus 2006 as well as timing of accounts payable.

In September 2007, Medifast, Inc.’s wholly owned subsidiary JBearmaceuticals, Inc. increased its Secured Line of Credit
from $5 million to $7.5 million and moved the line of crediiri Mercantile Safe-Deposit and Trust to Merrill LyncleTline of
credit is at LIBOR plus 1.3 percent. The increased line Imeaysed to finance fixed assets, advertising, and inverftdfgdifast,

Inc. The Company currently has no off-balance sheet arramggme

In the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company generatdtbaash$7,954,000 from operations, primarily attributable
to higher operating income. This was offset by net chainggserating assets and liabilities that decreased tasibf $1,289,000.
The largest use of cash was for the purchase of inventdrg Company builds up inventory each year in the fourth quarteder
to prepare for “diet season” in the first quarter of 2008di#fonal uses of cash included the funding of the Chairman @dheds
deferred compensation plan outlined in Note 1 of the fishstatements as well as prepaid advertising for Jant2008. This was
offset by an increase in accounts payable and income tayasi@af $1,367,000 and $57,000, respectively.

In the year ended December 31, 2007, net cash used in invasiviges was $7,969,000, which primarily consisted of the
purchase of intangible assets and purchases of property and equipfhe increase in intangible assets relates to theséion of
customer lists in 2007 which are used in direct response timyrkampaigns. These campaigns consist of postcards aaifsethmat
are sent to customers with a special offer or discoompan to order on our website, choosemedifast.com, or through-bouse
call center. In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company leasadditional Xerox Igen3 printer in order to increase its dingoting
capabilities. Large customer mailings will be sent owwdiekly throughout 2008. The increase in property and equipniatesr¢éo
the building of a large amount of infrastructure in 2007. sThtluded the purchase of a state of the art Avaya phatensy
additional enhancements to our Enterprise Resource PlannitegrSy$l server and networking upgrades, the build out of onr ne
Medifast Weight Control Centers as well as leasehofadvements to our distribution facility in Ridgely, MD.

In the year ended December 31, 2007, financing activities dedef#, 125,000 in cash flow, representing principal

repayments of long-term debt, and the purchase of 25,000 sharessofy stock. This was offset by an increase irirtkeof credit,
decrease in the CCS note receivable, and issuances ohtwamal options exercised with cash.
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In pursuing its business strategy, the Company may requiréoaddlitash for operating and investing activities. The omg
expects future cash requirements, if any, to be fundeddparating cash flow and cash flow from financing actwiti

There are no current plans or discussions in processgelatany material acquisition that is probable in thedeeable future.

SEASONALITY

The Company's weight management products and progearesistorically been subject to seasonality. Tiaditly the holiday season
in November/December of each year is considered podiidorcontrol products and services. January and Febgeamerally show
increases in sales, as these months are consideredrtheiecement of the “diet season.” The Company did xp#rience the same
degree of seasonality in 2008. This is largely dukddricrease in the consumer’s awareness of the olegdih and nutritional benefits
accompanied with the use of the Company's product likseconsumers continue to increase their associationtofional weight loss
programs with overall health, seasonality will @oné to decrease.

INFLATION

To date, inflation has not had a material effect on thepgaoryls business.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB  OUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the potential loss arising from advetsgnges in market rates and prices, such as intatestnd a decline in the stock
market. The Company does not enter into derivativesigivexchange transactions or other financial instrtsrfentrading or
speculative purposes. The Company has limited expasunarket risks related to changes in interest ratesprincipal risks of loss
arising from adverse changes in market rates and poedsich the Company and its subsidiaries are expeta# to interest rates on
debt. Since nearly all of our debt is variable bateed, any changes in market interest rates will @ausqual change in our net interest
expense. At December 31, 2008, there was $7.7 milfivariable interest loans outstanding which is sltf@interest rate risk.

Interest rates on our variable rate loans ranged fr@d%6 to 2.94% for the year ended December 31, 2888h 100 basis point
increase in the bank’s LIBOR rates relative to thesetings would impact interest expense by $77,000 o¢&rmonth period.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

The information required by this item is set forth on page® 70hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 9. CHANGES AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS O N ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES.

There were no disagreements with the Company's independentraudigarding accounting and financial disclosures for
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Securities and Exchange Commission defines the termo&lise controls and procedures” to mean a company’s
controls and other procedures that are designed to ensuiefdh@ation required to be disclosed in the reports tHde# or submits
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processemharized and reported, within the time periods spedifidie
Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. Besétke evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosargrols and
procedures by our management, with the participation of biaf Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer,chshe end of
the period covered by this report, our Chief Executive Qffeaed our Chief Financial Officer have concluded that ourdatisce
controls and procedures at the end of the period covered byetiug were effective to ensure that information requie be
disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under therrBes Exchange Act of 1934 is (i) recorded, processed, stimadand
reported, within the time periods specified in the Commissirules and forms, and (ii) accumulated and communicatedirto
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chie&rigial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely deaisisegarding
disclosure.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over FinancialReporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintainieguatk internal control over the Company's financial
reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is acpss designed to provide reasonable assurance regardiatithity of the
Company’s financial reporting and the preparation of conselidéihancial statements for external purposes in accordaitice
generally accepted accounting principles. Internal control favencial reporting includes policies and procedures thape(tpin to
maintaining records that, in a reasonable detail, accyrate fairly reflect our transactions and dispositionsusfassets; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded asangder preparation of our financial statements in rdecwe with
generally accepted accounting principles and that the re@gigtexpenditures of the Company are being made in accordéhce w
management and board of director authorization; and (@ige reasonable assurance that unauthorized acquisitionpruse
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a alatéfect on our financial statements would be preventeétectdd on a
timely basis.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal contraérofinancial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatgsn Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to futuréode are subject to the risk that controls may become inatgelbjeeause of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliancetlhétholicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management evaluated the effectiveness of the Compangisahtontrol over financial reporting based on the framlewor
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the dteenof Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Coniamiss
(“COS0O"). Based upon that evaluation, management concludédhéanaCompany’s internal control over financial reportingsw
effective as of December 31, 2008.

Changes in our Internal Control

There was no change in our internal control over finanegdnting during the quarter ended December 31, 2008 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to matkyiaffect, our internal control over financial reporting

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our CEO and CFO, does nettetkat our disclosure controls or our internal contrils
prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. A contreteym, no matter how well designed and operated, caidpronly reasonable,
not absolute, assurance that the control system’s olgedtiill be met. Further, the design of a control systerst reflect the fact
that there are resource constraints, and the benefimwbls must be considered relative to their costs. Beaaiuthe inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of colstcan provide absolute assurance that all controlssmuginstances of
fraud, if any, within Medifast, Inc. have been detecltbse inherent limitations include the realities that judgsnerdecision-
making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur becassepbé error or mistake. Controls can also be circumteceby the
individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two orenp@ople, or by management override of the controls. Thgnrdekany
system of controls is based in part upon certain assomspaibout the likelihood of future events, and there can besnoeace that
any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals walbpotential future conditions. Over time, controls rbagome inadequate
because of changes in conditions or deterioration in theeefcompliance with associated policies or procedueralBe of the
inherent limitations in a cost-effective control systemgstatements due to error or fraud may occur and notteetei.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors currently consists of 10 persori® directors, their ages, and the year in which theytfe@same director are
provided in the table below:

Director

Name and Experience Since
Barry B. Bondroff, CPA, age 60, is an officer and director with Gorfine, SchileGardyn, PA, a full- 2008
service certified public accounting firm offering a widenge of accounting and consulting serv

Previously, he was a Senior Managing Director with TABondroff brings over 35 years of experie

providing companies of all sizes and industries with prdcicd costeffective accounting, assurance,

business, technology and financial advisory services. Priananaging SMART, Bondroff was t

Managing Director for Grabush, Newman & Co., P.A., ckhcombined with SMART in May003

Bondroff began his career with Grabush Newman in 1970, ah@7& became Officer and was prome

to Managing Directom 1982. He earned his Bachelor of Science degree in Acoguintim the Universi

of Baltimore. Additionally, Bondroff serves dhe Board of Directors for the publicly traded First Mar

Bank of Maryland, a NASDAQ listed SEC registrant. Headdive with First Mariner serving on 1

Executive Committee, Loan Committee, Audit Committee a@sd Chairman of the Compensa

Committee. In addition to his professional affiliations, Bondrafineed on the Executive Committee

Israel Bonds and was a Director of Cycle Across Maryl&éfedhas served the National Jewish Medica

Research Center, the Jewish Center for Business Devehb@and has assisted the Baltimore Symp

Orchestra in its fundraising efforts. In addition, Barry wgsast President and Treasurer of the Edwe

Meyerberg Northwest Senior Center, and also served Menaber of the Board of Directors for -

Levindale Hebrew Geriatric Center and Hospitdk currently serves as Treasurer for Special Olyrmgf

Maryland, and as a Trustee for Stevenson Universityanyldnd.

Joseph D. Calderine, age 60, is the chaplain and counselor at the Villanaweetsity School of Law.He 2003
most recently served as the interim President at Meckr@mllege in North Andover, MAHe formerly

spent over eight years with the Loyola University MeldiCanter as the hospital Chaplain and ta

multiple @urses including Introduction to the Practice of Medicind Business Ethics. Rev. Calder

recently retired as a Captain in the US Navy Reservesseied as the Wing Chaplain for the 4th Me

Aircraft Wing.

Charles P. Connolly, age 60 is currently an independent director focusing on bank relatipsistiet 2006
refinancing, merger and acquisition strategy and executivg&osation design. Mr. Connolly spent

years at First Union Corp. that merged with Wachovia Bank001. He retireéh 2001 as the Presidi

and CEO of First Union Corp. Mr. Connolly serves on ther@®af numerous noprofit organization:

He holds an MBA from the University of Chicago and ABnfr Villanova University.

GeorgeJ. Lavin, Jr., Esc., age 8Qis a senior partner at Lavin, O'Neil, Ricci, CeproneD&ipio. Mr. 2005
Lavin is a 1951 graduate of Bucknell University. He atterithedUniversity of Pennsylvania School
Law, receiving an LL.B. in 1956, and then served as a Spaget, FederaBureau of Investigatio
United States Department of Justice, until 1959. Mr. Lawione of the dominant product liability defe
attorneys in the nation. He has had regional responsibilitissveral automotive specialty areas, anc
been called ugn to try matters throughout the county on behalf of his €livit. Lavin's present practi
and specialty emphasizes his commitment to defending the eiweriraustry. Mr. Lavin is admitted
practice before the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania, titedJ8tates Court of Appeals for the Third Cir
and the United States District Courts for the Eastern addIMDistricts of Pennsylvania. He is a mer
of the Faculty Advisory Board of the Academy of Advocacy, Alssociation of Defense Counsel, -
Defense Research Institute, The American Board of Trialogakes, and the Temple University L
School faculty. He has also been elected a fellow oftherican College of Trial Lawyers. On Marct
1994, Mr.Lavin assumed the title of Counsel to The Firm.
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Bradley T. MacDonald, age 61, is the Executive Chairman of the Board of Meglifas. Mr. MacDonalc
has been Chairman of the Board of Medifast, Inc. since Jah088 and was also Chief Executive officer
until March of 2007. He was the principal architect oftthearound of Medifast and formulated the
“Direct to Consumer” business models that are the prihawgrs of Revenue to this day. He also was the
co-founder of Take Shape for Life and acquired the Clinicatjms in 2002. During his time as CEO, he
managed the company to 29 consecutive quarters of profitsnpnovied shareholders equity from nege
$4 million to over $27 million in less than seven yebts.also increased the Company’'s market cap from
less than $1 million to over $100 million and listed the camypan the NYSE. In 2006, Mr. MacDonald
received the prestigious and audited Ernst and Young aW&Ettoepreneur of the Year” for the state of
Maryland in the consumer products category. Also, he tédaal the Company to national recognition in
Forbes Magazine ranking Medifast™2& the top 200 small companies in America. Mr. MacDomaid
previously employed by the Company as its Chief Executiviegdffrom September 1996 to August 1997.
From 1991 through 1994, Colonel MacDonald returned to adtityetd be Deputy Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Retail, Food, Hospitality and Retion Businesses for the United States Marine
Corps. Prior thereto, Mr. MacDonald served as Chief @iy Officer of the Bonneau Sunglass
Company, President of Pennsylvania Optical Co., ChaiandrCEO of MacDonald and Associates, wl
had major financial interests in retail drug, consumer caamaty pilot sunglass companigdr. MacDonalc
was national president of the Marine Corps Reserve @Sfisgsociation and retired from the United States
Marine Corps Reserve as a Colonel in 1997, after 28 yg&ervice. He was appointed and served on the
Defense Advisory Board for Employer Support of the GuardResrve (ESGR.) He also served on the
Board of Directors of the Baltimore County Chamber afin@®rce. Currently, Mr. MacDonald serves on
the Board of Directors of Stevenson University in Mang, and the Institute of Notre Dame High School,
Baltimore, Maryland. He is also the Vice-Chairmanhef Board of Directors of the Marine Corps Reserve
Toys for Tots Foundation. Mr. MacDonald is the father afdhret MacDonald who performs the role of
President and Chief Operating Officer at Medifast, Ing. Nichael C. MacDonald is the brother of Mr.
Bradley T. MacDonald.

Michael C. MacDonalc, age 56js senior vice president, operational effectivenesXéwox Corporatior
He leads a corporate initiative to review the compamy’s functions including markeg, learning, hume
resources and other key areas to ensure the Company is nigithi effectiveness of itesources ar
delivering a solid return on investmerRreviously, he wagresident of global accounts and marke
operations for Xerox Corporatioresponsible for corporate marketing, xerox.com, adverfisimgnd
public relations, and corporate communicatiohe was named to this position in October 2004 anc
appointed a corporate senior vice president in July 2000cDbtald is on théboard of directors
PAETEC and the Jimmy V FoundatiodMr. MacDonald completed executive business and manag
programs at Columbia University in 1992 and the InternationaloE®&anagement Program at Harv
University in 1998.

Dennis M. McCarthy, age 64 practiced law for 21 years as a civil litigator imttand contract cases.
was the founding member and managing partner of a Columbus, Gfdd lzav firm. Additionally, h
served active duty in the U.S. Marine Corps for 23 yeeud served 18 years in reserve service.
McCarthy retired from the Marine Corps in 2005 in thedgraf Lieutenant General after four year
command of all Marine Reserve forces. Mr. McCarthy isenily the Executive Director of the Rese
Officers Association, a congressionally chartered associatiootetbvo national defense. In additior
Medifast, he is a member of the Board of DirectorRizhda Networks.

Michael S. McDevitt, age 30, joined Medifast in 2002 as the Controller aad promoted to Vic
President of Finance in January 2004. In March 2005, he was prbtod®eesident and in January of 2
was also named Chief Financial Officer. In March of 2007, NaDevitt was promoted to Chief Execut
Officer of the Company. Rir to joining Medifast, Mr. McDevitt worked as a Finarchnalyst for the
Blackstone Group, an investment advisory firm based in Xexnk, NY.
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Jeannette M. Mills, age 42, currently serving as senior vice presidehttivé Baltimore Gas and Electric 2008
Company, a subsidiary of Constellation Energy. A Baltendld. native, Mills earned her Bachelor of

Science in Electrical Engineering from Virginia Polytechinistitute (Virginia Tech) and she currently

serves on the Advisory Board of the Bradley DepartmeEtexftrical and Computer Engineering. In 2006,

Mills earned her Masters of Business Administration fraydla College. Ms. Mills also works in the

community includes serving as Chair of the Board of Dirsdiar Voices for Children, Howard County's

Court Appointed Special Advocate Program. Additionally, simees on the Board of the Creative Alliar

a Program that builds communities by bringing togethertsidisd audiences from diverse backgrounds to
experience spectacular arts programs and engage in theecpgatess.

Donald F. Reilly, OSA, age 61, holds a Doctorate in Ministry (Counselingnfidew York Theological 1998
and an M.A. from Washington Theological Union as well 8s/ from Villanova University. Reverend
Don Reilly was ordained a priest in 1974. His assignmanhsded Associate Pastor, Pastor at St. Denis,
Havertown, Pennsylvania, Staff at Villanova UniverdRgrsonnel Director of the Augustinian Province of
St. Thomas of Villanova, Provincial Counselor, Co-Found&llbOAM Ministries where he ministers and
counsels HIV/AIDS patients and caregivers. He is cuyrent the Board of Directors of Villanova
University. He also serves on the Board of Trusteddesfimack College, MA, St. Augustine Prep, NJ,
and Malvern Prep, PA. Fr. Reilly was recently re4elé®rovincial of the Augustinian Order at Villanova,
PA. He oversees more than 220 Augustinian Friars andséwice to the Church, teaching at universities
and high schools, ministering to parishes, serving as chapltie Armed Forces and hospitals,
ministering to AIDS victims, and serving missions in Jgferu, and South Africa.

Margaret MacDonald-Sheet;, age 31, joined Medifast in 2000 as the Director of Satel 2008
Administration. In 2002, she was promoted to VP of Operations and in 2004 drtwSenior VP of

Operations. In May of 2006, Ms. MacDonald received an ExecMBA from Loyola University. In

March 2007, she was promoted to President and Chief Que@fficer of Medifast Inc.

Mary T. Travis, age 57, is currently employed with Eagle National Bank imBPgvania as the Senior 2002
Vice President of wholesale operations and was formegl\tce President of operations for the Financial

Mortgage Corporation. Mrs. Travis is an expert in magegbanking with over 40 years of diversified

experience. She is an approved instructor of the MortgagkeBs Association Accredited School of

Mortgage Banking. Mrs. Travis was also formally eedate and 2nd Vice President of the Mortgage

Bankers Association of Greater Philadelphia and the BafaBbvernors of the State of Pennsylvaridrs.

Travis is currently on Board of Governors of the Morg8&gnkers Association of Greater Philadelphia.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES

Director Independence

The Board consists of 12 members of which 9 are non-manageiregibrd. Determination as to the qualifications of an
independent directors are determined under section 303A.Q& dléw York Stock Exchange, or the NYSE, Listed Company
Manual and the Company's Categorical Standards of IndependeheeNYSE'’s independence guidelines and the Company’s
categorical standards include a series of objectivs, t®sth as the director is not an employee of the Company smdtengaged in
various types of business dealings involving the Company, whichdwprevent a director from being independent. The Board of
Directors has affirmatively determined that none ofG@eenpany’s independent directors had any relationships witBdhgany.

The Board, in applying the above referenced standards hawaaffely determined the Company's current independent

directors are: Barry B. Bondroff, Joseph D. Calderortegriés P. Connolly, George J. Lavin, Jr. Esg., DennisvidCarthy,
Jeannette M. Mills, Donald F. Reilly, and Mary T. Tevi
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Board Meetings

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 (“Fiscal 2008"Bdohed of Directors held five meetings. All Board mensber
attended at least 75% of the aggregate number of Boarthgseahd applicable committee meetings held while such indigidwexe
serving on the Board of Directors, or such committeedetthe Company'®rinciples of Corporate Governancehich is available
on the Company’s websiteww.choosemedifast.coloy following the link through “Investor Relations” to “Gurate Governance,”
each director is expected to dedicate sufficient timegggnend attention to ensure the diligent performance of hiseoduties,
including attending meetings of the shareholders of the ComplzenBoard of Directors and committees of which he oristae
member Twelve directors attended the 2008 annual general meeting.

Committees of the Board

Our Board of Directors has a standing audit committee,imaiing and corporate governance committee, compensation
committee, and executive committee.

Audit Committee

Our audit committee consists of Barry B. Bondroff, CésfP. Connolly, George J. Lavin, and Mary T. Travishez whom
are independent as discussed above under “Director Independascetuired by Rule 303A.07 of the NYSE Listed Company
Manual, the Board of Directors has affirmatively deiead that each audit committee member is financiallydite and that
Mr. Connolly is an “audit committee financial expert,” afimked in Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:

* have the sole authority and responsibility to hire, evalaatl, where appropriate, replace the independent auditors;

* meet and review with management and the independent autigorgérim financial statements and the Company’s
disclosures under Management’'s Discussion and Analysis afdi@haCondition and Results of Operations prior to
the filing of the Company’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q;

* meet and review with management and the independent authitorBnancial statements to be included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (or the annual repahaéoeowners) including (i) their judgment about the
quality, not just acceptability, of the Company’s accountingggles, including significant financial reporting issues
and judgments made in connection with the preparation of the ifhatetements; (ii) the clarity of the disclosures in
the financial statements; and (iii) the Company's disclosureger Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, including efificcounting policies;

* review and discuss with management, the internal auditm¢he independent auditors the Company’s policies with
respect to risk assessment and risk management;

e review and discuss with management, the internal auditaisttee independent auditors the Company's internal
controls, the results of the internal audit program, an€tmepany’s disclosure controls and procedures, and quarterly
assessment of such controls and procedures;

e establish procedures for handling complaints regarding acogyimiternal accounting controls and auditing matters,
including procedures for confidential, anonymous submission mfecas by employees regarding accounting and
auditing matters; and

* Review and discuss with management, the internal auditotsh& independent auditors the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s legal, regulatory andatbampliance programs.

Our Board of Directors has adopted a written charterhfraudit committee which is available on the Company’s websi
www.choosemedifast.cony following the links through “Investor Relations” to “Corpte Governance.” In fiscal 2008, the audit
committee met four times.
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Nominating and Cor porate Governance Committee

The nominating and corporate governance committee consitsegbh D. Calderone, Jeannette M. Mills, Donald FlyRaid
George J. Lavin, all of whom are independent as disciadésr@ under “— Director Independence.”

The principal duties of the nominating and corporate governamaittee are as follows:

» torecommend to our Board of Directors proposed nomiieeedection to the Board of Directors both at annual géner
meetings and to fill vacancies that occur between gemeretings; and

» To make recommendations to the Board of Directors daggathe Company’s corporate governance matters and
practices.

Our Board of Directors has adopted a written charter ®ontiminating and corporate governance committee, whiclaikble
on the Company's website atww.choosemedifast.comby following the links through “Investor Relations” to dporate
Governance” or in print to any shareholder who requestssitdsrth under “Additional Information — Annual Report, Finahaend
Additional Information.” In fiscal 2008, the nominating and cogbe governance committee met four times.

Compensation Committee

The compensation committee currently consists of Josef@alderone, Dennis M. McCarthy, Esq. Jeannette M. Maltg]
Mary T. Travis, all of whom were independent as discuabesle under “— Director Independence.”

The principal duties of the compensation committee arellass:

* measure the Chief Executive Officer’s performance aghiagoals and objectives pursuant to the Company plans;

* determine the compensation of the Chief Executive Offitter eonsidering the evaluation by the Board of Directors
of his performance;

* review and approve compensation of elected officers arsgmilbr executives based on their evaluations, taking into
account the evaluation by the Chief Executive Officer;

* review and approve any employment agreements, severaaogemnents, retirement arrangements, change in control
agreements/provisions, and any special or supplementfitsdor each elected officer and senior executivief
Company;

e approve, modify or amend all non-equity plans designed amitliedieto provide compensation primarily for elected
officers and senior executives of the Company;
* make recommendations to the Board regarding adoption of gdaiits; and

* Modify or amend all equity plans.

Our Board of Directors has adopted a written chartethiercompensation committee which is available on the Cortgpany
website atwww.choosemedifast.cdmy following the links through “Investor Relations” todfporate Governance.” In fiscal 2008,
the compensation committee met ftiones.

Executive Committee

Messrs. Bradley T. MacDonald, Michael C. MacDonald, Métt& McDevitt, Dennis M. McCarthy, Esq., and Jeannette M
Mills are members of the Executive Committee. The Exeg@ommittee has all the authority of the Board of Does;texcept with
respect to certain matters that by statute may not bgaletéby the Board of Directors. The Committee meeisdieally during
the year to develop and review strategic operational andgeammt polices for the Company. The Committee held twetings
during fiscal 2008.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company'staliseand executive officers and persons who beneficially ow
more than ten percent of a registered class of the Congpaqyity securities to file with the SEC and the NYSEahiteports of
ownership and reports of changes in ownership of equity Sesuitthe Company. Directors, officers and greater-tharpercent
beneficial owners are required by SEC regulations to furhistCompany with copies of all Section 16(a) forms filedham. In
2008, to the Company's knowledge, based solely on a review afofiies of such filings on file with the Company and written
representations from the Company’s directors and execaffiers, no Section 16(a) filing requirements were iapple to the
Company’s directors, executive officers and greater-tharpercent beneficial owners in fiscal 2008.

Codes of Business Conduct and Ethics and Corporate @ernance Guidelines

Our Board of Directors has adopted a corporate Code of BssiDenduct and Ethics applicable to our directors, officers,
including our principal executive officer, principal financiafficer and principal accounting officer, and employees, e as
Corporate Governance Guidelines, in accordance with apldicales and regulations of the SEC and the NYSE. Hamlr €Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics and Corporate Governance Guidelmewailable on our website atvw.choosemedifast.coby
following the links through “Investor Relations” to “Corjpte Governance.”

Any amendment to, or waiver from, a provision of thenfany's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics with respect to the
Company’s principal executive officer, principal financiaficgfr, principal accounting officer or controller will mosted on the
Company’s websiteyww.choosemedifast.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview of Compensation Program

Our Compensation Committee of the Board of Directorsrbaponsibility for establishing, implementing and continually
monitoring adherence with the Company's compensation philosophg. Compensation Committee ensures that the total
compensation paid to our named executive officers is fesanable and competitive. Generally, the types of compemsatd
benefits provided to our named executive officers areainulthose provided to other officers and employeelseo€ompany.

Throughout this discussion, the individuals who served as our CEQ, and President during Fiscal 2008, as well as the other
individuals included in the Summary Compensation Table oa Pagare referred to as the “named executive officers.”

Objectives of Compensation Program

The main objective of our executive compensation program eate a competitive total rewards package based on the
attainment of short-term performance objectives and lamg-tgrategic goals. Accordingly, our executive compensgiimgram
consists of the following three principal elements: bakeysaash bonus and equity grants in the form of stock opsindsestricted
stock, with an emphasis on incentive compensation rather thasddasg Our executives are also eligible to participaemployee
benefit and retirement plans offered by the Company, which clyriealude defined contribution, and 401(k) plans, and health care
and other insurance programs. The benefit programs availatdeetutives are the same as those available totedt etigible
employees.

Decision-Making; Role of Executive Officers in Compesation Decisions

The Compensation Committee of our Board of Director®isprised solely of non-affiliate independent Directors whetme
the independence requirements of the NYSE. Our Compensatiomi@ee makes all decisions regarding the compensatioarof o
CEOQO, including establishing the performance goals and ti@sdor our CEO, evaluating our CEO’s performance ghtliof the
goals and objectives that were set and determiningemathmending to our Board the CEO’s compensation based avéhaation.

Our CEO makes recommendations to our Compensation Comfoittibe compensation of all other named executive officers
Our Compensation Committee and Board may accept or ajcistrecommendations as they determine in the best intefébés o
Company and its stockholders and has final approval oveudil compensation decisions. To the extent not establisteed Bpard
of Directors, our Compensation Committee is also authdria establish compensation and benefits for our Chairman andvior
and existing non-affiliate independent Directors.
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Our Chairman, CEO, and Vice President of Human Resourcesd@radvice, analysis and recommendations to our
Compensation Committee.

Elements of Executive Compensation

Our Compensation Committee also evaluates the achievaheotporate, individual and organizational objectivesefach
executive officer during the prior fiscal year. Each elentértompensation is chosen in order to attract and retainetessary
executive talent, reward corporate performance and providetivedor the attainment of long-term strategic goate @llocation of
each element of compensation is determined by our Compensationittee for each executive based on the following factor

Performance against corporate, individual and organizatitmectives for the fiscal year;

Importance of particular skill sets and professionaltaslito the achievement of long-term strategic  goals
and

Contribution as a leader, corporate representative ambareof the senior management team.

These elements support our overall compensation philosophgrdating a balanced focus on shorter-term corporate
performance and the achievement of longer-term busine$s goa stockholder value. While we believe in structuringcative
compensation plans that give our executives incentive teedalertain objective elements of corporate finanatfgomance over
specified time periods, we do not believe in a purely mechhapproach. Instead, part of our executive compensatiorsppiiy
includes an element of reward for non-quantitative achiemsndemonstrated by our executives in the actions and decthiey
have taken throughout the year. When establishing our execotiveensation plans for a given year, it is not possibierésee all
of the challenges and demands that will be made of our executivs as a management team and in their areas of individual
responsibility. We believe that by rewarding the quality @f decision-making and leadership, in addition to the achieveafient
quantifiable results, we are building a management tegabte of creating stockholder value over the longer-ternile remaining
disciplined in delivering shorter-term financial resultscéwingly, there is no pre-established policy or targetttier allocation
between either cash and non-cash or short-term and longrteentive compensation. Rather, the Compensation Comnettesvs
information provided by industry surveys and peer company datatermine appropriate level and mix of incentive compimsat
Income from such incentive compensation is realized asiti ofshe performance of the Company and the individual, depgui
the type of award, compared to established goals.

Base Salary

Our base salary determinations principally reflect thdssiihd performance levels of individual executives, the neetse
Company, and pay practices of comparable public companiissndt our policy to pay our executive officers at the rsgtmse
salary level. Instead, we establish executive basdesaltzonservatively at or below a midpoint level rekativ an appropriate set of
peers. We believe this policy sets a prudent and fiscaliponsible tone for the Company's overall base salanpepsation
programs.

Target Bonus

Cash bonuses principally reflect the Company’s financial pegfioce and achievement of corporate objectives established by
our Board prior to the fiscal year. The executive bonus ipldesigned to reward our executives for the achievemesfioofer-term
financial goals, predominantly revenue growth and profitghilitith cash flow and other operating ratios also consitleréhe
allocation of the bonus pool among the employees, includimnigrsexecutives, is at the discretion of the Compens&mmmittee.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer arttier senior executives discuss and jointly develop recomrdelnoleus

allocations among the staff within the various functionahs@ the Company. In addition, the Chief Executive Offfmepares an
allocation of bonus payments among the senior executive grogpnsultation with the Chief Executive Officer, the @amsation
Committee evaluates, adjusts and approves the amourstllacation of the bonus pool. In determining the cash bonusatithoc
among senior executives, the Compensation Committee arithteEExecutive Officer consider each executive’s a) doution to

current and long-term corporate goals, and b) value itabiwe market.
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Equity Compensation

Stock option and restricted stock awards principally reftaet responsibilities to be assumed by each executive in the

upcoming fiscal year, the responsibilities of each execiniygior periods, the size of awards made to each exedutigrior years
relative to the Company's overall performance, avadlatbck for issuance under our Option Plan, and potentialsgirariuture
years. The Committee believes that stock option and atestrstock grants (1) align the interests of executivek lsitg-term
stockholder interests, (2) give executives a signifidang-term interest in the Company’s success, and (3) help ley executives
in a competitive market for executive talent. The Compmiu®g not intend to issue stock options as part of compemga®009 and

beyond.

Equity Ownership by Executives

We do not currently have a formal equity ownership requiréfoemmur executives. However, we encourage our executves
own equity in the Company on a voluntary basis. All of our namedwive officers own stock, restricted stock and vested and
unvested stock options. We periodically review the vested aresten/equity holdings of our executives and evaluate whetlser the

holdings sufficiently align the interests of our executiveth wie long-term interests of our stockholders. We magider adopting

equity ownership requirements in the future.

2008 Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the annual and long-tesmpensation for the fiscal year ended December 31, 200& of t
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financidic@f and each of the three other most highly compensatsitve
officers. These individuals, including the Chief Executivéd®f and Chief Financial Officer are collectivelyeakd to as the

Named Executive Officers.

Name and Pricipal Position
Bradley T. MacDonald

Chairman of the Board
Michael S. McDevitt

Chief Executive and CFO
Leo V. Williams

Executive Vice President
Margaret MacDonald - Sheetz

Chief Operating Officer, President

Brendan N. Connors
VP of Finance

Nonqualified
Deferred
Stock Option Compensation
Salary Awards Awards Bonus Contributions All Other Total
Year ) ®A) ®@ ®@ ®) ®E ®)
2008 $225,000 107,000 - - $100,000 $6,700 $438,700

2008 135,000 450,000 - 75,000 2,700 662,700
2008 132,500 - 25,000 2,900 160,400
2008 100,000 372,000 - 50,000 3,000 525,000
2008 99,000 101,000 - 20,000 3,000 223,000

(1) Amounts are calculated based on provisions of SFA! 123R, “Share Based Payments.” See natéthe consolidate
financial statements of the Company’'s Annual Report on Afri for the year ended December 31, 2088arding
assumptions underlying valuation of equity awards.

(2) Bonus amounts determined as more specifically discussed ahdee“—Compensation Discussion and Analysis”
(3) The amounts represent the Company’s matching contributions tinedé®1(K) plan.

2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

On January 25, 2008, the Board of Directors modified BradldidcDonald’s compensation package for his role in the
succession plan and business development initiatives aseouith the December 31, 2006 10-K. The Board cancelled theOD00,0
options granted to Mr. MacDonald on February 8, 2006 and expldem with a restricted stock grant of 42,000 shares. The

restricted shares will vest over a period of 3 yeaginbing on January 25, 2009.

The Medifast Board of Directors on July 24, 2008 approvedetesi common stock grants to the Named Executives with a

5 year vesting period, beginning on the grant date. Nameclx@ Officers were granted 425,000 shares of restriatetnon

35



stock to retain their services over the next five yesrsjard their efforts in the participation of the successfidcession and

transition of the company operations to the new senioragement team, and incentivize continued sales and profittly in

accordance with targets set by the Board of Directors.

The Medifast Board of Directors on November 24, 2008 approesgdcted common stock grants to key executives as a
2008 performance bonus for exceeding internal sales and jrefiiakts. Key executives were granted 150,000 sharesrifteelst
common stock over a five year vesting period, beginning omaig 1, 2009.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table

Option Awards Stock Awards
Equity Incentive
Market Equity Plan Awards:
Value of  incentive Plan Market or Payout
Number of Number of Number Shares or Awards: Value of
Securities Securities Shares or Units of Number of  Unearned Shares
Underlying Underlying Units of Stock  Stock that Unearned Units or Other
Unexercised Unexercised  Option Option That Have Not have not Shares, Units rights That Have
Name Options (#) Options (#) Exercise  Expiration Vested Vested  or Other rights Not Vested
Exercisable Un-Exercisable Price ($) Date Vested (#)(1) %)) (#) $)
Bradley T. MacDonald
Chairman of the Board - - 107,000 590,640 - -
Michael S. McDevitt
Chief Executive Officer, CFO 100,000 - 2.87 3/31/2010 307,085 1,695,109 - -
Leo V. Williams
Executive Vice President 10,000 - 3.83 10/28/2010 - - -
Margaret MacDonald - Sheetz
Chief Operating Officer, President - - 255,000 1,407,600 - -
Brendan N. Connors
VP of Finance 23,334 - 2.87 3/31/2010 83,000 458,160 - -
Each option has a five year life and an exercise pricsehz@e equal to 100% of the estimated fair value of @unwn
stock on the date of grant.
Q) The restricted stock grants vest over five andeaxs/ of service as described below under “Narrativel@iare to
Summary Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based Awards”
2) The market value of shares of stock that have ested is based on the closing price of our common sto&ecember 3

2008, or $5.52 per share.
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2008 Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table

Thefollowing table sets forth information regarding optionreises and stock vesting for the Named Executive Officers
during 2008.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of
Number of Shares Value
Shares Acquirec Value Realizec Acquired on Realized on
on Exercise on Exercise Vesting Vesting
Name (#) $)@Q) (#) $)2
Bradley T. MacDonald - - -
Executive Chairman of the Board - - 20,000 107,400
Michael S. McDeuvitt - - 15,000 81,000
Chief Executive Officer, CFO - - 33,333 208,331
30,00( 161,10(
Leo V. Williams - - - -
Executive Vice President - - - -
Margaret MacDonald - Sheetz - - 15,000 81,000
Chief Operating Officer, President - - 25,000 156,250
25,000 134,250
Brendan N. Connors 3,000 16,200
VP of Finance - - 5,000 31,250
10,000 53,700

(1) Represents the difference between the exercise prichafait market value of the common stock on the date ofisgerc
multiplied by the number of options exercised.

(2) Represents the number of restricted shares vested, amshther of shares vested multiplied by the fair market \afitiee
common stock on the vesting date.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information at Fiscal Year Erded December 31, 2008

Number of
securities
Number of Weighted remaining available
securities to be average exercise for future issuance
issued upon price of under equity
exercise of outstanding compensation
outstanding options, plans (excluding
options, warrants warrants and securities reflected
Plan category and rights rights in column (a))
€Y (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders 223,334 (1) $3.65 1,229,165
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders - - -

(1) Consists of 143,334 shares of common stock issuable upon thsexafroutstanding options and 80,000 shares of

common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding verrant

2008 Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Table

The following table sets forth all non-qualified deferoethpensation of the Named Executive Officers for trelfigear

ended December 31, 2008.

Executive Company Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
Contributions in Contributions Earnings in Last Withdrawals/Di  Balance at Last
Last FY in Last FY FY stributions FYE
(€] (CI]€Y) ® ® ®
Bradley T. MacDonald $100,000 (381,000) $0 $792,000

Chairman of the Board

Michael S. McDevitt - - -
Chief Executive Officer, CFO

Leo V. Williams - - -
Executive Vice President

Margaret MacDonald - Sheetz - - -
Chief Operating Officer, President

Brendan N. Connors - - -
VP of Finance

(1) All amounts are reported in compensation on the “2008 Sumnmmpénsation Table”
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Deferred Compensation Plans

We maintain a non-qualified deferred compensation plan tiefieSeptember 10, 2003, for Senior Executive management.
Currently, Bradley MacDonald is the only participant in ghen. Under the deferred compensation plan that becanativaffen
2003, executive officers of the Company, including the Named ExecOfficers, may defer a portion of their salary and bonus
(performance-based compensation) annually. A participant heetyte receive distributions of the accrued deferred cosgi®n in
a lump sum or in installments upon retirement

Each participating officer may request that the deferreduatadoe allocated among several available investmentnsptio
established and offered by the Company. These investmenh®pmtiovide market rates of return and are not subsidized by the
Company. The benefit payable under the plan at any timepartipant following termination of employment is equalthe
applicable deferred amounts, plus or minus any earnings eslasisibutable to the investment of such deferred amoumsarfiount
of compensation in any given fiscal year that is deferreshioh Named Executive Officer is included in the Summaryp@osation
Table under the column headings “Salary” or “Non-Equity Inserfilan Compensation”, as appropriate.

The Company has established a trust for the benefit otipantis in the deferred compensation plan. Pursuant to the term
of the trust, as soon as possible after any deferred asnbam been withheld from a plan participant, the Compdahygamtribute
such deferred amounts to the trust to be held for the beféfie participant in accordance with the terms ofple and the trust.

Retirement payouts under the plan upon an executive officéirsment from the Company are payable either in a lump-
sum payment or in annual installments over a period of uprig/ears. Upon death, disability or termination of emplaoymail
amounts shall be paid in a lump-sum payment as soon as adhtivesf feasible.

In 2008, the Company made a $100,000 contribution to Bradley MacDsui#ftrred compensation plan as a performance
bonus.

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table anrants of Plan-Based Awards

We have entered into employment agreements with certairedN&xecutive Officers, certain terms of which are sumrmedriz
below.

Bradley T. MacDonald. Mr. MacDonald entered into a five year employmenteagent effective February 8, 2006. Mr.
MacDonald was granted 100,000 options over a five yeamgegériod beginning on February 8, 2007 in consideration for s fiv
year commitment and to align his interest with the interetlong-term shareholders On January 25, 2008, the Bo@ieaftors
modified Bradley T. MacDonald’s compensation package fordhésin the succession plan and business development initiasves
outlined in the December 31, 2006 10-K. The Board cancéid 0,000 options granted to Mr. MacDonald on February 8, 2006
and replaced them with a restricted stock grant of 42,000 shiinestestricted shares will vest over a period of 3sybaginning on
January 25, 2009. Upon termination of Mr. MacDonald’s employrbg the Company without cause, or upon his resignation for
good reason, he would be entitled to receive an amount equat tand a half times the sum of his highest annualize galgable
in equal monthly installments 30 days after his termbmabdf employment for a period of one year.

Michael S. McDevitt. Mr. McDevitt entered into a six year employment agre@neffective February 8, 2006. Mr. McDevitt
was granted 200,000 shares of Medifast, Inc. restrictechoonstock over a six year vesting period beginning on Feb8,&§06 in
consideration for his six year commitment and to align hesésts with the interests of long-term shareholders. thramination of
Mr. McDevitt's employment by the Company without causejmon his resignation for good reason, he would be entitled¢ivee
an amount equal to one and a half times the sum of his haymasalized salary payable in equal monthly installments 30 days a
his termination of employment for a period of one year.

Margaret MacDonald - Sheetz. Ms. MacDonald - Sheetz entered into a six year employagneement effective February 8,
2006. Ms. MacDonald - Sheetz was granted 150,000 shares dabetiic. restricted common stock over a six year vesgtnigpd
beginning on February 8, 2006 in consideration for his six year donemii and to align her interests with the interests of-teng
shareholders. Upon termination of Ms. MacDonald - Sheeiployment by the Company without cause, or upon her resignation
for good reason, she would be entitled to receive an amountteqoa and a half times the sum of his highest annualized sal
payable in equal monthly installments 30 days afterdrenihation of employment for a period of one year.

Brendan N. Connors. Mr. Connors entered into a six year employment agreeefiective February 8, 2006. Mr. Connors
was granted 30,000 shares of Medifast, Inc. restricted constock over a six year vesting period beginning on Febru@g08, in
consideration for his six year commitment and to align hesests with the interests of long-term shareholders. thramination of
Mr. Connors’ employment by the Company without cause, or upaesignation for good reason, he would be entitled toveesi
amount equal to one and a half times the sum of his highestkzed salary payable in equal monthly installments 30afesshis
termination of employment for a period of one year.
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Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Contol

As of December 31, 2008, the Company had entered into emplowmeeements with each of the Named Executive Officers.
As described in more detail above under “Narrative DisclosuBummary Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Basedd8’
The employment agreements with the Named Executive Offijggrarally provide for the payment of benefits if the exeeldi
employment with the Company is terminated either by the Compithput Cause or by the executive for Good Reason. The
employment agreements with the Named Executive Officersialoprovide for any additional payments or benefits upon a
termination of employment by the Company for Cause, upon the aesuesignation other for Good Reason, as applicable, or
upon the executive’s death or disability. Upon terminatiorhbyGompany without cause, or upon his or her resignation for good
reason, all of the Named Executive officers are edtitte receive an amount equal to one and a half times higrohighest
annualized base salary payable in equal monthly installméntfays after his or her termination of employment. If meth
executive had been terminated without cause on December Blth2§0vould have received the following amounts:

Severance ($) (1)

Bradley T. MacDonald $337,500
Michael S. McDevitt $202,500

Margaret MacDonald - Sheetz $150,000
Brendan N. Connors $148,500

(1) Based on 2008 salary

If there were a change in control, which is defined adeaaf the majority of the assets of the company draamge of control of the
Board of Directors as a result of a third party shadsgrahcquiring or holding over 10% of the common stock aedhating to
nominate a majority of the Board of Directors in fagbhis/her shareholder block, the executives would havévetehe following
amounts as of December 31, 2008:

Accelerated

Vesting of
Severance Stock Awards
($)(1) ($)(2) Total
Bradley T. MacDonald $337,500 $590,640 $928,140
Michael S. McDeuvitt 202,500 1,695,109 1,897,609
Margaret MacDonald - Sheetz 150,000 1,407,600 1,587,60
Brendan N. Connors 148,500 458,160 606,660

(1) Based on 2008 salary.
(2) Accelerated vesting of stock awards were baseNYSE close price of the Common Shares
on December 31, 2008 of $5.52 per sharefanoption awards the difference between $5.52thadexercise or base price of the award.
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2008 Director Compensation

The table below summarizes the

December 31, 2008.

Name

Barry B. Bondroff

Joseph D. Calderone, OSA
Charles P. Connolly
George Lavin, Jr., Esq.
Michael C. MacDonald
Dennis M. McCarthy
Jeannette M. Mills

Rev. Donald F. Reilly, OSA
Mary T. Travis

Fees

Earned or Stock
Paid in Awards
Cash ($) %))

$ - $5,370

- 21,570

16,000 21,570

- 21,570

- 21,570

- 21,570

5,370

- 21,570

- 21,570

Option
Awards

®)

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation ($)

Change in Pension Valu
and Nonqualified
Deferred Compensation
Earnings (%)

Employee Directors do not receive any additional compendatidheir services as director.

compensation paid by the Cortparon-employee directors for the fiscal year ended

All other
Compensation ($)

Additional fees are paid to the Audit Committee Chairmiar2008, the Chairman received an additional $16,000 in cash

compensation.

1) Amounts are calculated based on gsions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, A6SNo 123R, “Share
Based Payments.” See note 2 of the consolidated finatatelment of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2008 regarding assumptions urglealyiation of equity awards.
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$5,370
26,940
37,570
21,570
26,940
21,570
5,370
26,940
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The table below summarizes the equity based awards héie [Bompany’s non-employee directors as of December 31, 2008.

Name

Barry B. Bondroff

Joseph D. Calderone, OSA
Charles P. Connolly
George J. Lavin, Jr., Esq.
Michael C. MacDonald
Dennis M. McCarthy
Jeannette M. Mills

Rev. Donald F. Reilly, OSA
Mary T. Travis

Option Awards

Number of Number of
Securities Securities
Underlying Underlying
Unexercised Unexercised Option
Options (#) Options (#)
Exercisable Un-Exercisable

Exercise

Price ($)

Option
Expiration

Date

Stock Awards
Number Market Value
Shares or of Shares or
Units of Units of
Stock That Stock that
Have Not have not
Vested Vested
Vested (#) ($)
5,000 27,600
14,000 77,280
9,000 49,680
9,000 49,680
14,000 77,280
9,000 49,680
5,000 27,600
15,000 82,800
15,000 82,800

The Medifast Board of Directors on July 24, 2008 approvetliceed common stock grants to Board members with @b ye
vesting period, beginning on the grant date. The granttwésnured Board members that successfully implementedethierS
Management Succession Plan over the last four years thaowgle, counsel, and mentorship. A total of 55,000 shénesticted
common stock were granted to tenured Directors.

The Medifast Board of Directors on November 24, 2008 approv&dcted common stock grants to key executives and

Board members as a 2008 performance bonus for exceeding intéesahusa profit forecasts.

Non-management Board members

were each granted 5,000 shares of restricted commak\steting over two years, beginning on January 1, 2009.

Compensation Committee Report

We have reviewed and discussed with management certain CatiperiBiscussion and Analysis provisions to be included in
this Form 10-K. Based on the reviews and discussions refesredbove, we recommend to the Board of Directors that t
Compensation Discussion and Analysis referred to above lneléatcon the Form 10-K for the year-ended December 31, 2008.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mary T. Travis, Chairman
Joseph D. Calderone
Dennis M. McCarthy, Esqg.
Jeannette M. Mills
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNE RS AND MANAGEMENT .

The following table shows as of December 31, 2008, the amodrpercentage of our outstanding common stock beneficially
owned by each person who is known by us to beneficially own thare5% of our outstanding common stock.

Shares Percent of
Name and Address of Beneficially Outstanding
5% Beneficial Owner Owned (1) Common Stocl
Renaissance Technologies, LLC and James H. Simons 732,701 5.0%
800 Third Avenue
New York, NY 1002
Berg and Berg Enterprises, LLC 900,48 6.2%

10050 Bandley Drive
Cupertino, CA 94014
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The following table shows as of March 13, 2009aheunt and percentage of our outstanding commah steneficially owned (unless otherwise
indicated) by each of our (i) directors and nominfee directors, (iij) Named Executive Officers g our directors, nominees for director and
executive officers as a group.

Shares
Acquirable Percent of
Shares Beneficially Within 60 days Outstanding
Name of Beneficial Owner Owned (1)(2) (3) Common Stock (%)
Bradley T. MacDonald (4) 903,550 - 6.19%
Michael S. McDeuvitt 399,784 - 2.74%
Margaret MacDonald 252,900 - 1.73%
Brendan N. Connors, CPA 81,509 0.56%
Donald F. Reilly 67,183 - *
Michael C. MacDonald 63,697 - *
Charles P. Connolly 29,075 - *
Mary T.Travis 29,033 - *
Joseph D. Calderone, OSA 17,700 - *
Dennis M. McCarthy, Esq. 13,075 - *
Leo V. Williams 11,770 - *
George J. Lavin, Jr., Esq. 10,700 - *
Barry B. Bondroff, CPA 3,500 - *
Jeannette M. Mills 3,500 - *
All directors, nominees for directors and executifficers as a group 1,886,976 - 12.94%

(14 persons)

*  Less than 1%.

(1) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance wihrdkes of the Sexities and Exchange Commission. Under those
and for purposes of the table aboveif(@) person has decision making power over either the votirige disposition of ar
shares, that person is generally deemed to be a benefitial of those shares; [}wo or more persons have decision ma
power over either the voting or the disposition of any sh#ney will be deemed to share beneficial ownership cfelshees
in which case the same shares will be included in share dvipéatals for each of those persons; andf(a)person hel
options to purchase shares that were exercisable on, endes@rcisable within 60 days of, March 13, 2a0at person wi
be deemed to be the beneficial owner of those shares andltamss (but nathares that are subject to options held by any
stockholder) will be deemed to be outstanding for purpose®raputing the percentage of the outstanding shares tt
beneficially owned by that person. Information supplied by offieend directors.

(2) Unless otherwise noted, reflects the number of shhegéscould be purchased by exercise of options availatiéaath 13
2009, or within 60 days thereafter under our stock option plans

(3) The shares set forth as beneficially owned by Mr. Bsadl MacDonald include 396,402 shares owned bywife Shirle
MacDonald, and 65,667 shares owned by the MacDonald Family THistdaughter, MargaréflacDonald, beneficially owr
252,900 shares which added to Bradley T. MacDonald’s 903,550 baihebened shares results in 1,156,45@res owned |
the MacDonald family.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTI ONS
As of December 31, 2008, there were no related party t@mss
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Fees to Independent Registered Public AccountantsrfBiscal 2008 and 2007

The following services were provided by Bagell, Josepégine & Co during fiscal 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007
Audit Fees(1) $154,000 $199,000
Tax fees(2) 29,000 30,000
All other fee: - -
Total $183,00t $229,001

@ Audit fees consist (fees for professional services rendered for the auditeoCompany’'s consolidated financial statements incluc
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the audit efrat controls required by Section 404 of the Sarb@nésy Act
of 2002, and the review of financial statements included in thep@oy's Quarterly Reports on Form @0-and for services that i
normally provided by the auditor in connection with statutorgl regulatory filings or engagements.

(2) Tax fees were billed for tax compliance services

Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent Auditors

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and permisgifmeaudit services provided by the independent auditors. These
services may include audit services, audit-relatedcesrytax services and other services. The Audit Cameniitas adopted a policy
for the pre-approval of services provided by the independeitbesi

Under the policy, pre-approval is generally provided for vemsociated with the following:
e registration statements under the Securities Act of 1@8®xample, comfort letters or consents);
e due diligence work for potential acquisitions or dispositions;
e attest services not required by statute or regulation;

e adoption of new accounting pronouncements or auditing and disele@sguirements and accounting or regulatory
consultations;

e internal control reviews and assistance with internalrobregporting requirements;
e review of information systems security and controls;

e tax compliance, tax planning and related tax servicesjdixg any tax service prohibited by regulatory or other
oversight authorities; expatriate and other individual tewises; and

e Assistance and consultation on questions raised by reguéfengies.

For each proposed service, the independent auditors areeckdoiprovide detailed back-up documentation at the time of
approval to permit the Audit Committee to make a deternainathether the provision of such services would impaiirtiependent
auditors’ independence.

The Audit Committee has approved in advance certain permsigt@ites whose scope is routine across business urlislinme
statutory or other financial audit work for non-U.S. sdissies that is not required for the 1934 Act audits.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINACIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

@ 1. Financial Statements

See Index to the Consolidated Financial Staten@nimge 47 of this Annual Report

2. Financial Statement Schedules

None, as all information required in these scheslidéncluded in the Notes to the Consolidated fafel Statements.

3. Exhibits

Reference is made to the Exhibit Index on pagef4fi® Annual Report for a list of exhibits requirby Item 601 of Registration S-K to be
filed as part of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Medifast, Inc.
Owing Mills, Maryland 21117

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance shéétslifdst, Inc. as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the
related consolidated statements of income, changes khetders’ equity and accumulated other comprehensive income, sind ca
flows for each of the years in the three-year period en@egibber 31, 2008. Medifast, Inc.’s management is respofitileese
financial statements. Our responsibility is to expresspamion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards ofitfie ompany Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the awtitatim reasonable assurance about whether the financiaheteseare
free of material misstatement. The company is not reduo have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit iotétsial control
over financial reporting. Our audit included consideratiomtsfrnal control over financial reporting as a basisdiesigning audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bidrnibte purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveneti of
company's internal control over financial reporting. Actingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examiming
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disdasuble financial statements, assessing the accountimgpbes used and
significant estimates made by management, as well &saéng the overall financial statement presentation. béeve that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements refeiweabove present fairly, in all material respects, thantial
position of Medifast, Inc. as of December 31, 2008 and 2007thenesults of its operations and its cash flows foh @t¢he years
in the three-year period ended December 31, 2008 in conforitityaacounting principles generally accepted in the United SStdite
America.

/s/Bagell, Josephs, Levine & Company, L.L.C.
Bagell, Josephs, Levine & Company, L.L.C.
Marlton, NJ 08053

March 6, 2009
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MEDIFAST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cashand cash equivalents
Accounts receivable-net of alowance for doubifabants
of $100,000
Inventory
Investment securities
Deferred compensation
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Prepaid income tax
Note receivable - current
Current portion of deferred tax asset
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment - net
Trademarks andintangibles - net
Deferred tax asset, net of current portion
Note receivable, net of current assets
Other assets

TOTALASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Currert liabiliies:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Line of credit
Current maturities of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Other liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Total liabiliies

Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock, $.001 par value (1,500,000 azdithmo shares issued and outstanding)
Common stock; par value $.001 per share; 20,008t@08s authorized;
14,585,960 and 13,709,098 shares issued and dimgtan
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive incone (loss)
Retained eamings
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2008 2007
1,841,000 $ 2,195,000
448,000 493,000
13,856,000 9,181,000
1,099,000 1,439,000
531,000 814,000
2,034,000 2,727,000
1,131,000 -
180,000 180,000
100,000 100,000
21,220,000 17,129,000
21,709,000 17,031,000
5,547,000 7,356,000
1,131,000 897,000
1,080,000 1,212,000
350,000 99,000
51,037,000 $ 43,724,000
5,130,000 $ 4,279,000
- 592,000
3,164,000 1,599,000
257,000 264,000
8,551,000 6,734,000
4,313,000 4,570,000
12,864,000 11,304,000
15,000 14,000
30,787,000 26,953,000
(389,000) 321,000
15,253,000 9,818,000




MEDIFAST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31,

(Restated)
2008 2007 2006
Revenue $105,445,000 $83,779,000 $74,086,000
Cost of sales (25,332,000) (21,464,000) (18,237,000)
Gross profit 80,113,000 62,315,000 55,849,000

Selling, general, and administration

(71,914,000)

(56,600,000)

(48,468,000)

Income from operations 8,199,000 5,715,000 7,381,000
Other income (expense):

Interest expense (366,000) (387,000) (369,000)

Interest income 149,000 105,000 175,000

Other income (expense) (132,000) 110,000 276,000

(349,000) (172,000) 82,000

Income before provision for income taxes 7,850,000 5,543,000 7,463,000
Provision for income taxes (2,415,000) (1,706,000) (2,307,000)
Net income attributable to common shareholdet $5,435,000 $3,837,000 $5,156,000
Basic earnings per share $0.41 $0.30 $0.41
Diluted earnings per share $0.38 $0.28 $0.38
Weighted average shares outstanding -

Basic 13,126,534 12,960,930 12,699,066

Diluted 14,329,525 13,644,149 13,482,894

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS'

Balance, December 31, 2005

Warrants converted to common stock
Common stock issued to Directors
Common stock issued to consultants
Dividend paid in stock

Options excercised to common stock
Options granted to CEO

FASB 123R vesting

Shares issued to executives with 5 & 6 year vegargpd
Vesting of unearned compensation
Treasury shares issued to employees
Net income

Balance, December 31, 2006

Warrants converted to common stock
Common stock issued to Directors
Options excercised to common stock
FASB 123R vesting

Vesting of unearned compensation
Repurchase of treasury stock
Treasury shares issued to employees
Net income

Balance, December 31, 2007

Common stock issued to Directors
Options excercised to common stock

Shares issued to Executives and Directors with®ytear ve
Vesting of unearned compensation to executivesdaedtors

Cancellation of options and reissuance of restiisteares
Treasury shares issued in legal settlement
Net income

Balance, December 31, 2008

MEDIFAST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

EQUITY AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  (LOSS)
Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006
(Restated)
Common Stock
Par Value Additional Accumulated
Number $0.001 Paid-In Retained other comp Treasury Uheear
of Shares Amount Capital Earnings income/(loss) Total oclst Compensation
12,782,798 13,009 21,759,000 $ 825,000 $ 282,000 $ 22,879,000  (1,075,000)$ (107,000)
142,810 200 762,000 762,200 (137,000)
10,750 100 69,000 69,100
2,500 100 17,000 17,100
128,047 100 240,000 240,100 (490,000)
383,000 383,000 (383,000)
41,000 41,000
565,000 600 3,374,000 3,374,600 (3,374,000)
508,000
(100) (16,000) (16,100) 16,000
5,156,000 52,000 5,208,000
13,631,898 14,000 26,6@9,00 5,981,000 334,000 32,958,000 (1,686,000) (3,356,000)
40,000 100 192,000 192,100
9,700 100 31,000 31,100
27,500 100 24,000 24,100
101,000 101,000
641,000
(309,000)
(300) (24,000) (24,300) 24,000
3,837,000 (13,000) 3,824,000
13,709,098 $14,000 $2©963, $9,818,000 $321,000 $37,106,000 ($1,971,000) ($2000p
37,000 100 152,000 152,100
61,112 100 72,000 72,100 (43,000)
736,750 700 3,493,000 3,493,000 (3,493,000)
852,000
42,000 100 105,000 105,800 (182,000)
12,000 12,000 58,000
5,435,000 (710,000) 4,725,000
14,585,960 $15,000 $30087, $15,253,000 ($389,000) $45,666,000 ($1,956,000) 5885000)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these aatedl financial statements.
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MEDIFAST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net ¢
provided by operating activities from
continuing operations:
Depreciation and amortizati
Realized(gain) loss on investment securities
Loss on sale of Consumer Choice Systems
Common stock issued for serv
Treasury stock issued in legal settlement
Stock options vested during period
Stock options cancelled during pe
Excess tax benefits from share-based payanamgements
Vesting of unearned compensa
Net change in other comprehensive (loss) income
Deferred income taxes
Changes in assets and liabilit
(Increase) Decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) in inventory
(Increase) Decrease in prepaid expenses & other tasssai
(Increase) Decrease in deferred compensation
(Increase) in prepaid taxes
(Increase) Decrease in other a:
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase (Decrease) in income taxes payable
Net cash provided by operating activitit
Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Sale of investment securities,
(Purchase) of property and equipn
(Purchase) of intangible assets
Net cash (used in) investing activitie
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Issuance of common stock, options and warrants
(Repayment) of long-term debt,
Increase in line of credit
Decrease in note receivable
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrang
(Purchase) of treasury stock
Net cash provided by financing activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the
Cash and cash equivalents - end of

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informatior
Interest paid
Income taxes

Supplemental disclosure of non cash activit'
Common stock issued to Directors over 6-year vesting period
Options vested during period
Options cancelled during period
Common stock issued for services
Common shares issued for options or warrants

Treasury stock issued in legal settlement
Line of credit converted to long-term d

2008 2007 2006
(Audited) (Audited) (Restatec
$ 5,435,000 $ 3,837,000 $ 5,156,000
4,574,001 3,471,001 2,271,001
216,000 103,000 (79,000)
323,000
152,00 31,00 86,00
70,000 - -
- 100,000 40,000
(77,000 - -
- 39,000 16,000
852,00 641,00( 509,00(
(711,000) (13,000) 52,000
(234,000) (390,000) (597,000)
43,000 (43,000) 379,000
(4,675,000) (926,000) (3,138,000)
693,00 (128,000 675,00
282,000 (140,000) (148,000)
(1,131,000) - -
(251,000 (52,000 13,00(
0®50,0 1,367,000 651,000
(592,000) 57,000 (364,000)
5,496,001 7,954,001 5,845,001
129,00 (4,000 1,237,001
(7,429,000 (5,151,000 (5,557,000
(13,000) (2,814,000) (2,427,000)
(7,313,000 (7,969,000 (6,747,000
30,000 216,000 795,000
(264,000 (586,000 (481,000
1,565,000 1,706,000 623,000
132,000 137,000 -
- (39,000 (14,000
- (309,000) (420,000)
1,4680 1,125,000 503,000
(354,000) 1,110,000 (399,000)
2,195,001 1,085,00! 1,484,001
$ 1,841,000 $ 2,195,001 $ 1,085,000
$ 367,000 $ 387,000 369,000
$ 3,661,000 3$ 1,790,000 _$___ 3,403,000
$ 0852 $ - $ 3,373,000
$ - $ 100,000 $ 40,000
$ 77,000 $ -
$ 152,000 $ 31,000 $ 86,000
$ 30,000 $ - $ 591,000
$ 70,000 $ - $ -
5 - T 2,156,000 5 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these atmiteadlifinancial statements
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MEDIFAST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONT.)

2008

Years Ended December 31,

2007

(Restated)
2006

Supplemental disclosure of non cash activity:
Sale of Consumer Choice Systems
Inventory $ -
Accounts Receivable
Intangible assets, net
Note receivable
Loss on sale of Consumer Choice Systems -

$358,000
131,000
1,337,000
(1,503,000)
(323,000)

$ -

$ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these atmitealifinancial statements
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Medifast, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2008, 2007, 2006

1. BACKGROUND
Nature of the Business

Medifast, Inc. (the "Company” or “Medifast” is a Delas corporation, incorporated in 1980. The Company’s operadiens
primarily conducted through six of its wholly owned subsidgrdason Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Jason"), Take Shapéddpiric. (“TSFL"),
Jason Enterprises, Inc., Jason Properties, LLC and Sevaddlird LC, and Medifast Franchise Systems. The Compaeydaged in the
production, distribution, and sale of weight management aeasismanagement products and other consumable health anddiietspro
Medifast, Inc.’s product lines include weight and disease nesmaigt, and meal replacement products manufactured in a médsn,
approved facility in Owings Mills, Maryland.

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and distribution dffdd&® branded and private label weight and disease
management products. These products are sold through variouselhef distribution, to include web, call center, indepenteatth
advisors, medical professionals, weight loss clindiggct consumer marketing supported via the phone and the Wib. processing,
formulation, packaging, labeling and advertising of the Conipaproducts are subject to regulation by one or more fedgecies,
including the Food and Drug Administration, the Federal Traden@ssion, the Consumer Product Safety Commission, theed)Sitates
Department of Agriculture, and the United States Enviraniahd’rotection Agency.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Significant accounting policies followed in the preparaibthe consolidated financial statements are as fallows

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounttheo Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Jason
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Take Shape For Life, Inc., Sevendall Associates, LLC, Jason Properties, LLC Medifash&hise Systems, and
Jason Enterprises, Inc. All inter-company accounts havediegnated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated statements of caghtfie Company considers all highly liquid debt instrumentshased
with an original maturity of three months or less to bé epiivalents. At December 31, 2008, the Company had $923,000 in misce#ia
short-term investments through Merrill Lynch that are aer®d cash equivalents due to terms of maturity, and $918,00@emting
checking accounts.

At December 31, 2007, the Company had $1,224,000 in miscellaneousesmoimvestments through Merrill Lynch that are
considered cash equivalents due to terms of maturity, and0B®@7ih, operating checking accounts.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accourst

Accounts receivable are recorded net of reserves fes saturns and allowances, and net of provisions for doubtfuliisco
Allowances for sales returns and discounts are based omafysiarof historical trends, and allowances for doubtfubasts are based
primarily on an analysis of aging accounts receivable basaand on the creditworthiness of the customer as degdrhy credit checks
and analysis, as well as the customer’s payment history.

Inventory

Inventories consist principally of packaged meal replacésrigeld in the Company’s warehouse. Inventory is stati dbwer of
cost or market, utilizing the first-in, first-out methdrhe cost of finished goods includes the cost of rateniads, packaging supplies, direct
and indirect labor and other indirect manufacturing costs. GQuagerly basis, management reviews inventory for ungat@bobsolete
inventory. Obsolete or unsalable inventory write-offsehbgen immaterial to the financial statements as owlupte have useful lives
ranging from 14-24 months.
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Advertising

Advertising costs such as preparation, layout, design addgifon of advertising are deferred. They are expensed thhervertisement
is first used, except for the costs of executory cotgrachich are amortized as performance under the cordresteived. Advertising costs
deferred at December 31, 2008 and 2007, were $557,000 and $1,014,000vedgpedvertising expense for the years ended Decembe
31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 amounted to $17,800,000, $18,400,000, and $14,30@660vels

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost lessnaleded depreciation and amortization. The Company computes
depreciation and amortization using the straight-line methied the estimated useful lives of the assets acqagddlows:

Building and building improvements 39 years
Equipment and fixtures 3 -15 years
Vehicles years

The carrying amount of all long-lived assets swated periodically to determine whether adjustment taskéul life or to the
unamortized balance is warranted. Such evaluation is basetbalfinon the expected utilization of the long-lived assat$ the projected
undiscounted cash flows of the operations in which the lieeg-bssets are used.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Long-Lived Assets”, progp@iant and equipment and other long-lived assets arewetlifor
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances atheathe carrying amount of an asset may not be recogerabl
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is mealyredomparison of the carrying amount of an assetitoast undiscounted future
cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.dathgéng amount of an asset exceeds its estimated fasreflows, an impairment
charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying ambtie asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordartheStatements of Financial Accounting Standards B8, “/Accounting for
Income Taxes,” which requires an asset and lialgiityroach to financial accounting and reporting fooine taxes. Deferred income taxes and
liabilities are computed annually for differencesaesn the financial statement and the tax basissetsand liabilities that will result in taxable
or deductible amounts in the future based on engatelhws and rates applicable to the periods iitiwthe differences are expected to affect
taxable income. Valuation allowances are establislesh necessary to reduce deferred tax assetsamthent expected to be realized.

Earnings per Common Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net @tfibutable to common stockholders by the weighted averagder
of outstanding common shares during the year. Basic earpergshare exclude any dilutive effects of options, wareamdsother stock-
based compensation, which are included in diluted earnimgshaee.
Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized net of discounts, rebates, pronlcidjnatments, price adjustments, returns and other pdtentia

adjustments upon shipment and passing of risk to the custanherhen estimates of are reasonably determinable, coli@streasonably
assured and the Company has no further performance obligations.
Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity wvétitounting principles generally accepted in the United Stdtes o
America requires management to make estimates and asmusripiat affect the reported amounts of assets andtlegbiéind disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of thediahstatements and the reported amounts of revenues and exgiemse the reporting
periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance $beetsh, certificates of deposit, accounts receivatdeounts
payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair valuabee of the immediate or short-term maturity of tharfaial instruments.

The Company believes that its indebtedness approximategafa@ based on current yields for debt instruments with simila
terms.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Compangrédlit risk consist of cash, certificates of deposivestment
securities and trade receivables. Cash, money markeiswastimnents exceed the federal insurance coverage by $944,080,554,000
respectively. The Company securities at December 31, 2008087 include amounts deposited with multiple financial institutidhe
Company markets its products primarily to medical profesds, clinics, and Internet medical sales and has naastibsconcentrations of
credit risk in its trade receivables.

As of December 31, 2008 the Company had two customers thadimlly represented over 10% of the accounts receivable and
in the aggregate, approximately 43% of the accounts reteiviab2007, the Company had three customers that individweghesented
over 10% of the accounts receivable and in the aggregatexapately 70% of the accounts receivable.

Deferred Compensation Plans

We maintain a non-qualified deferred compensation plaBdmior Executive management. Currently, Bradley Maelkbis the
only participant in the plan. Under the deferred compensptanthat became effective in 2003, executive officerfi@fG@ompany may
defer a portion of their salary and bonus (performance-basegueosation) annually. A participant may elect to receiveibligions of the
accrued deferred compensation in a lump sum or in instabmpon retirement

Each participating officer may request that the deferreduataobe allocated among several available investmentngptio
established and offered by the Company. These investment optimride market rates of return and are not subsidized by th@a@ym
The benefit payable under the plan at any time to a participoiving termination of employment is equal to the applieadéferred
amounts, plus or minus any earnings or losses attributatife investment of such deferred amounts. The Company haiststd a trust
for the benefit of participants in the deferred compensatian. frursuant to the terms of the trust, as soon as fgoaftier any deferred
amounts have been withheld from a plan participant, the Compliropntribute such deferred amounts to the trust to be loelthé benefit
of the participant in accordance with the terms of the phd the trust.

Retirement payouts under the plan upon an executive officetitement from the Company are payable either in a lump-sum
payment or in annual installments over a period of up tgears. Upon death, disability or termination of employmalhamounts shall be
paid in a lump-sum payment as soon as administrativedjblea

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisidfisancial Accounting Standards Board Statement of Fiaanci
Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 123(R), “Share-Based Rays;” which establishes the accounting for employee stasdmavards.
Under the provisions of SFAS No.123(R), stock-based compemss measured at the grant date, based on the catttdatealue of the
award, and is recognized as an expense over the reguigiteyee service period (generally the vesting periddeogrant). The Company
adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective metithda a result, periods prior to December 31, 2005 haveent b
restated. The Company recognized stock-based compensatiwafals issued under the Company’s stock option plans in other
income/expenses included in the Condensed Consolidated Statéi®gerations. Additionally, no modifications were madeuts@anding
stock options prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), anclnilative adjustments were recorded in the Company's fiaanci
statements.

On January 25, 2008, the Board of Directors modified BradlejMdcDonald’s compensation package for his role in the
succession plan and business development initiatives as dutlitlee December 31, 2006 10-K. The Board cancelled the 100,000s0pt
granted to Mr. MacDonald on February 8, 2006 and replaced thénawstricted stock grant of 42,000 shares. The restrictesbshil
vest over a period of 3 years beginning on January 25, 2009.

The Medifast Board of Directors on July 24, 2008 approved cesircommon stock grants to key executives and Board members
with a 5 year vesting period, beginning on the grant ddes; executives were granted 425,000 shares of restricted aostouk to retain
their services over the next five years, reward theorisffin the participation of the successful succession andition of the company
operations to the new senior management team, and incerdontinued sales and profit growth in accordance wigets set by the Board
of Directors. Tenured Board members that successfullyeimghted the Senior Management Succession Plan over tHeuasears
through advice, counsel, and mentorship were awarded 55,0@8 sifiaestricted common stock.

The Medifast Board of Directors on November 24, 2008 approv&dcted common stock grants to key executives and Board
members as a 2008 performance bonus for exceeding internabsdlgsofit forecasts. Key executives were granted 15G0afks of
restricted common stock over a five year vesting pebiedinning on January 1, 2009. Non-management Board meméergach granted
5,000 shares of restricted common stock vesting over éarsybeginning on January 1, 2009.

Unearned compensation represents shares issued to exethdivweill be vested over a 5-6 year period. Theseslvell be
amortized over the vesting period in accordance with FABRR). The expense related to the vesting of unearned coatipensas
$852,000 and $641,000 at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 200TivetgpeExpense related to vesting of options under FASB
123R was $0, $100,000, and $40,000 at December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006yegspe
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SFAS No. 123(R) requires disclosure of pro-forma infoionafor periods prior to the adoption. The pro-forma disclesare
based on the fair value of awards at the grant datetiaetto expense over the service period. The follovabtgtillustrates the effect on
net income and earnings per share as if the Company haeldahe! fair value recognition provisions of SFAS N23,1*Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation”, for the period prior to the adopfiBFAS No. 123(R), and the actual effect on net incomesarmngs per
share for the period after the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).

If compensation expense for the Company's stock-based compendatie had been determined consistent with SFAS 123, the
Company's net income and net income per share includingrpne fesults would have been the amounts indicated below:

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Net income: (Restated)
As reported $ 5,435000 $ 3,837,000 $ 5,156,000
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expensadedlin net
income, net ofrelated tax effects - 61,000 24,000
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatiterrdeed under fa
value based method for all awards, net of relaaadffects - (61,000) (24,000)
Net income, pro forma $ 5,435000 $ 3,837,000 $ 5,156,000
Net income per share:
as reported:
Basic $ 041 $ 030 $ 0.41
Diluted $ 038 $ 028 $ 0.38
Pro forma:
Basic $ 041 $ 030 $ 0.41
Diluted $ 038 $ 028 $ 0.38

The pro forma effect on net income may not be represeniaft the pro forma effect on net income of future gedue to, among
other things: (i) the vesting period of the stock optionsthadii) fair value of additional stock options in futyears.

For the purpose of the above table, the fair value of gatébnogranted is estimated as of the date of grant usirlélck-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

2008 2007 2006
Dividend yield ................... 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected volatility .............. .70 0.54 0.70
Risk-free interest rate .......... 1.0% 4.0% 4.50%
Expected life in years........... 1-5 1-5 1-5
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards BoardSBHAissued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements”
("SFAS No. 157"), which clarifies the definition of fair ual whenever another standard requires or permits assetdbititidgato be
measured at fair value. Specifically, the standardfigarihat fair value should be based on the assumptiorietrgarticipants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, and establishesravidue hierarchy that prioritizes the information usedéwelop those assumptions.
SFAS No. 157 does not expand the use of fair value to anyimawnstances, and must be applied on a prospective basp @xcertain
cases. The standard also requires expanded financial statdiselosures about fair value measurements, includirgodige of the
methods used and the effect on earnings.

In February 2008, FASB Staff Position ("FSP") M& 157-2, "Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 15FSP No. 157-2") was
issued. FSP No. 157-2 defers the effective date of SFAS™oto fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, raadn periods
within those fiscal years, for all nonfinancial assets latlities, except those that are recognized or disclosé&aravalue in the financial
statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). Egangblitems within the scope of FSP No. 157-2 are nonfirlaasiets and
nonfinancial liabilities initially measured at fair valirea business combination (but not measured at fair valuebseguent periods), and
long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment andibléaassets measured at fair value for an impairmeesssient under
SFAS No. 144.

The partial adoption of SFAS No. 157 on January 1, 2aB8egpect to financial assets and financial liabiliteegnized or disclosed
at fair value in the financial statements on a recurringsbaisl not have a material impact on the Company's conseatidatancial
statements. See Note 15 for the fair value measurenmnioslires for these assets and liabilities. The Compmtiry the process of
analyzing the potential impact of SFAS No. 157 relatingstplanned January 1, 2009 adoption of the remainder of tigasth

On January 1, 2008 (the first day of fiscal 2008), ttragany adopted SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for FiabAssets and
Financial Liabilities, Including an amendment of FASB StaeiniNo. 115" ("SFAS No. 159"). SFAS No. 159 permits entttieshoose to
measure many financial instruments and certain other iif@sr value, which are not otherwise currently requirebdetoneasured at fair
value. Under SFAS No. 159, the decision to measure itefafr aalue is made at specified election dates on d@rument-by-instrument
basis and is irrevocable. Entities electing the fair valpigon are required to recognize changes in fair valuarinirggs and to expense
upfront costs and fees associated with the item for whiclfath@alue option is elected. The new standard did not impacCompany's
Consolidated Financial Statements as the Company did nottledefatir value option for any instruments existing athefadoption date.
However, the Company will evaluate the fair value mezrsent election with respect to financial instrumentibimpany enters into in the
future.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 ¢&2807), "Business Combinations" ("SFAS No. 141(R)"). SFASIM1(R)
changes how an entity accounts for the acquisition of a busimbdle it retains the requirement to account for all bussneombinations
using the acquisition method, the new rule will apply to@gemnrange of transactions or events and requires, iraeaequisition-date fair
value measurement of identifiable assets acquirehlities assumed and non-controlling ownership interestd imethe acquire, among
other items. The Company is beginning to review the pangsof SFAS No. 141(R), which applies prospectively to bgsimembinations
with an acquisition date on or after the beginning of its 2328l year.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160,-totrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statememt&mendment of
ARB No. 51" ("SFAS No. 160"). SFAS No. 160 replaces the minority interests with the newly-defined term of non-cotitiglinterests
and establishes this line item as an element of stockholdprisy, separate from the parent's equity. SFAS No. 160radkides expanded
disclosure requirements regarding the interests of thenpand its non-controlling interest. The Company is contintongeview the
provisions of SFAS No. 160, which is effective the faatrter of fiscal 2009, and currently does not expechdwsaccounting standard to
have a significant impact on the Consolidated FinanciaStnts.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, "Dsgles about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitiesaraendment of
FASB Statement No. 133" ("SFAS No. 161"). SFAS No. 16Ingbs the disclosure requirements for derivative insgtnisnand hedging
activities. The Company is reviewing the provisions cASHNo. 161, which is effective the first quarter of fis2809, and currently does
not anticipate that this new accounting standard will hasigréficant impact on the Consolidated Financial Statesnent

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, “The Hibyaof Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” (SFAS No. 16EBAS
No. 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles andr#meefvork for selecting principles used in the preparatiofinahcial
statements. SFAS No. 162 is effective 60 days following SE€’s approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversigbar&
amendments to AU Section 411, “The Meaning of PresentyRairConformity with Generally Accepted Accounting PrincipleBhe
implementation of this standard will not have a matemiglact on Consolidated Financial Statements.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff PositiéBR") Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) No. 03-6-1, t&®mining Whether
Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment TransactionBa#ftieipating Securities.” Under the FSP, unvested share-ipesenent
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awards that contain rights to receive nonforfeitablédivds (whether paid or unpaid) are participating securitiesstemdd be included in
the two-class method of computing EPS. The FSP is eféefiivfiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 anthtierim periods
within those years The implementation of this standalfchet have a material impact on Consolidated Finargiatements.

Investments

In accordance with FAS No. 115¢counting for Certain Investments in Debt and EqBiguritie$, securities are classified into
three categories: held-to-maturity, available-for-salé aading. The Company’s investments consist of debt and egaityities classified
as available-for-sale securities. Accordingly, theyaaied at fair value in accordance with FAS No. 115.tHeuy according to FAS No.
115 the unrealized holding gains and losses for availabkeafes securities are excluded from earnings and reporteaf, deferred income
taxes, as a separate component of stockholders’ equitgsuhkeloss is classified as other than a temporaryndénlimarket value.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBUed Statement No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”. This statement addresses financial accountingeanding for acquired goodwill and other intangible asaatl supersedes APB
Opinion No. 17, “Intangible Assets”. It addresses hownigitale assets that are acquired individually or withaaprof other assets (but not
those acquired in a business combination) should be accountedifiancial statements upon their acquisition. This Statgralso
addresses how goodwill and other intangible assets shoutdtdignged for after they have been initially recognized ifittancial
statements.

In addition, the Company has acquired other intangible asdets) imclude: customer lists, non-compete agreements, teaklem
patents, and copyrights. The non-compete agreements wereaffudirtized as of December 31, 2007. The customer listbeing
amortized over a period ranging between 5 and 7 years basedchagement's best estimate of the expected benefits to bencedr
otherwise used up. The costs of patents and copyrigataraortized over 5 and 7 years based on their estimagfdl uife, while
trademarks representing brands with an infinite life, andtaméed at cost and tested annually for impairment asnedtbelow. Goodwill
and other intangible assets are tested annually for impairin the fourth quarter, and are tested for impairmené fnequently if events
and circumstances indicate that the asset might be impAmachpairment loss is recognized to the extent thatéingiog amount exceeds
the asset’s fair value. The Company assesses the m&gilitee of its goodwill and other intangible assets by conmgathe projected
undiscounted net cash flows associated with the related agsetheir remaining lives, in comparison to theipegsive carrying amounts.
Impairment, if any, is based on the excess of the carryimayiat over the fair value of those assets.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in efjaityusiness enterprise during a period from transacimhsther
events and circumstances from non-owner sources, includindipeglegains and losses on marketable securities. The Corppesgnts
comprehensive income in its consolidated statementsakftaifolers equity.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2edsekavreclassified to conform to the presentation of the
December 31, 2008 amounts. The reclassifications haviéesb@n net income for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
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3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND MARKETABLE SECURITES

The following summarizes cash, cash equivalents, and tabt&esecurities:

Cost Accrued interest Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents

Demand deposits $ 918,000 $ - % 918,000
Money market accounts 923,000 - 923,000
December 31, 2008 $ 1,841,000 $ - $ 1,841,000
Investment Securities

Investment Securities $ 1,088,000 $ 11,000 $ 1,099,000
December 31, 2008 $ 1,088,000 $ 11,000 $ 1,099,000
Cash and cash equivalents

Demand deposits $ 971,000 $ - % 971,000
Money market accounts 1,224,000 - 1,224,000
December 31, 2007 $ 2,195,000 $ - $ 2,195,000
Investment Securities

Investment Securities $ 1,428,000 $ 11,000 $ 1,439,000
December 31, 2007 $ 1,428,000 $ 11,000 $ 1,439,000

The Company had a net unrealized loss of $711,000 as of DecBini2808, a net unrealized loss of $13,000 as of Decemb20(2,, and
a net unrealized gain of $52,000 as of December 31, 2006Cdrhpany had a realized loss of $216,000, realized loss of $108;600
realized gain of $79,000 for the years ended December 38, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

4. INVENTORY

Inventory consists of the following at December 31, 20082004 :

2008 2007
Raw materials $2,810,000 $2,136,000
Packaging 2,234,000 2,656,000
Finished goods 8,812,000 4,389,000
Total $13,856,000 $9,181,000

5. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid expense and other current assets as of DecemBe08hBnd 2007, consist of the following:

2008 2007
Marketing and advertising $1,531,000 $1,978,000
Supplies 413,000 377,000
Insurance 90,000 353,000
Other - 19,000
$2,034,000 $2,727,000
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2008 and 268i5t©f the following:

2008 2007
Land $ 650,000 $ 650,000
Building and building improvements 8,603,000 70D,
Equipment and fixtures 21,810,000 05000
Vehicle 43,000 43,000
31,106,000 23,735,000
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 9,397,000 6,704,000
Property, plant and equipment - net $ 21,709,000 $ 17,031,000

Substantially all of the Company's property, plant and eqeriprare pledged as collateral for various loans (ste ©).

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2008,a2@02006 were $2,751,000, $2,139,000 and $1,072,000,
respectively. In 2007, the Company disposed of assets witttamalated depreciation of $95,000 relating to the closing eéthr

corporately owned Medifast Weight Control Centers.

7. TRADEMARKS AND INTANGIBLES

As of December 31, 2008 As of December 31, 2007
Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Customer lists $ 8,332,000 $ 4,649,000 $ 8,332,000 $ 3,065,000
Non-compete agreements 840,000 840,000 840,000 840,000

Trademarks, patents, and copyrights

finite life 1,640,000 685,000 1,626,000 446,000

infinite life 909,000 - 909,000 -
Total $ 11,721,000 $ 6,174,000 $ 11,707,000 $ 4,351,000

Amortization expense for the years ended Decemberl32008, 2007 and 2006 was as follows:

(Restated)
2008 2007 2006
Customer lists $ 1,584,000 $ 1,096,000 $ 774,000
Non-compete agreements - - 273,000
Trademarks, patents, and copyrights 239,000 236,000 152,000
Total trademarks and intangibles $ 1,823,000 $ 1,332,000 $ 1,199,000

On January 17, 2006 the Consumer Choice Systerisativof the Company was sold which included the &4
$1,601,000in gross intangible assets and $2 65 86cumulated amortization.

Amortization expense is included in selling, geharad administrative expenses.

The estimated future amortization expense of trademarkstangible assets is as follows:

For the years ending December 31, Amount
2009 1,675,000
2010 1,104,000
2011 1,101,000
2012 666,000
2013 57,000
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8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses as of December 3Bn202807 consist of the following:

2008 2007
Trade payables $3,658,000 $3,181,000
Accrued payroll and related taxes 168,000 562,000
Sales commissions payable 1,303,000 536,000
Total $5,130,000 $4,279,000

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company leases office space for Corporate officegelisas twenty-one corporately owned Medifast Weight
Control Centers under lease terms ranging from threwdoyéars with leases commencing in 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and
2008. Monthly payments under the Medifast Weight Control Ceéases range in price from $2,000 to $4,200. The
Company is required to pay property taxes, utilities, imm@and other costs relating to the leased facilities.

The Company leases large commercial printers for outipg operation that supports our sales channels. The
leases extend through December 2012. The annual lease paamef99,000, $355,000, $334,000, and $283,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum reatal lease payments required under operating lease
that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease tammagdess of one year as of December 31, 2008:

For the Years Ending
December 31,

2009 $ 1,325,000
2010 1,174,000
2011 1,110,000
2012 959,000
2013 227,000
Thereafter -
Total minimum payments required $ 4,795,000

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, anda20R®6%,000, $464,000, and $274,000, respectively

There is no pending or threatened legal action that wwand material adverse on the Company’s consolidated fihaosiéion,
results or operations or cash flows in future years.
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10. INCOME TAXES

Significant components of the income tax benefit for thesyeaded December 31 are as follows:

(Restated)
2008 2007 2006

Current:

Federal $ 1,244,000 $ 926,000 $ 1,073,000

State 467,000 307,000 327,000

Total Current $ 1,711,000 $ 1,233,000 $ 1,400,000
Deferred:

Federal $ 563,000 $ 371,000 $ 786,000

State 141,000 102,000 121,000

Total deferred 704,000 473,000 907,000
Income tax expense $ 2,415,000 $ 1,706,000 $ 2,307,000

A reconciliation between the provisions for income taadsulated at the U.S. federal statutory income taxanadthe
consolidated income tax benefit in the consolidated statemiimsome for the years ended December 31 is as fallows

(Restated)
2008 2007 2006

Provision at the U.S. federal statutory rate $ 26810 $ 1884000 $ 2,537,000
State taxes, net of federal benefit 473,000 277,000 1,080
Intangible assets (479,000) (377,000) (297,000)
Other temporary differences - - -
Amended tax retumn refund receivable (162,000) - -
Cost segregation study - - (275,000)
Permanent differences (98,000) (78,000) (29,000)

Income tax expense $ 2415000% 1,706,000 $ 2,307,000
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Medifast, Inc.’s deferred income taxes reflect the aeeffect of temporary differences between the basessefsaand liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their bases for income t@oges. Significant components of the Company’s deferrdihtalties and
assets as of December 31 are as follows:

2008 2007
Deferred tax assets
Intangible assets $ 1,106,000 $ 872,000
Accounts receivable 40,000 40,000
Inventory overhead and write downs 44,000 43,00
Deferred compensation 41,000 41,000
Total deferred tax assets $ 1,231,000 $ 997,000

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Intangible assets $ - $ -
Accounts receivable - -
Inventory overhead and write downs - -
Total deferred tax liabilities $ - $ -

The 2008 effective income tax rate of 30.8% differed ftoenfederal statutory rate of 34% due to the amortizatigntangible assets,
timing differences for other temporary and permanent diffegs, and state income taxes.

The 2007 effective income tax rate of 30.8% differed ftoenfederal statutory rate of 34% due to the amortizatigntangible assets,
timing differences for other temporary and permanent diffegs, and state income taxes.

The 2006 effective income tax rate of 30.9% differed fthenfederal statutory rate of 34% due to the amortizatiantangible assets, a
cost segregation study performed on fixed assets, hasvining differences for other temporary and permariéfatehces, and state
income taxes.

11. STOCK OPTION PLAN

On October 9, 1993 and as amended in May 1995, the Company adoptekl apstmn plan ("Plan") authorizing the grant of
incentive and non-incentive options for an aggregate of 500,@08ssbf the Company's common stock to officers, emplogé&esfors and
consultants. Incentive options are to be granted at faikeiaalue. Options are to be exercisable as detednbigethe stock option
committee.

In November 1997, June 2002 and July 2004, the Company amended the iRtamdsmng the number of shares of the Company's
common stock subject to the Plan by an aggregate of 200,0@8,s8@0,000 shares and 250,000 shares respectively.

The following summarizes the stock option activity for years ended December 31:

2008 2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Average
Average Exercise Exercise
Shares Exercise Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 291,300% 419 321,579 $ 3.88 359,727 $ 2.71
Options granted - - 100,000 6.25
Options reinstated - - 16,6 66 6.36
Options exercised (28,334) 0.50 (27,500) 0.89 (128,147) 2.11)
Options forfeited or expired (119,632) 6.39 (2,779) 1.60 (26,667) (8.36)
Outstanding at end of year 143,334% 3.00 291,300 $ 4.19 321579 $ 3.88
Options exercisable at year end 143,334% 3.00 211,300 $ 3.35 211577 $ 2.77
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The weighted average fair value at date of grant faooepigranted during the year 2006 was $6.25. No stock optiaesgrnanted
in 2007 and 2008.

In 2005, the Company incorrectly cancelled 75,000 options to a&faramsultant. The options were correctly added back to the
2006 option schedule above. The omission from the schedule irygaiohad no impact on earnings per share. During 2007, therform
consultant exercised 25,000 options and during 2008 the consukacised the remaining 25,000 options.

The following table summarizes information about stock ogtimutstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2008:

Options Outstanding Options
Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Contractual Weighted Weighted
Range of Life Average Average
Exercise Number Remaining Exercise Number Exercise
Prices Outstanding (in Years) Price Exercisable Price
$2.87 123,334 1.25 $2.87 123,334 $2.87
$3.83 20,000 1.83 $3.83 20,000 $3.83
143,334 $3.00 143,334 $3.00

12. LONG-TERM DEBT AND LINE OF CREDIT

Long-term debt as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, consist fofltveing:

2008 2007
$200,000 five-year term loan secured by equipment
fixed rate was 3% at December 31, 2008. Due 2008 - 7,000
$475,000 seven-year loan secured by the building and land at a

variable rate at LIBOR plus 250 bps, which was 2.84%

December 31, 2008. Due 2011 332,000 364,000
$7,500,000 revolving line of credit at the LIBOR rate plu9, 3,164,000 1,599,000
which was 1.74% at December 31, 2008
$3,000,000 ten-year term loan, with Merrill Lynch

at LIBOR plus 1.3%, this was 1.74% at December 31, 20082D1i 2,825,000 2,975,000
$1,500,000 ten-year term loan, with Merrill Lynch
at LIBOR plus 1.3%, this was 1.74% at December 31, 20082D1i 1,413,000 1,488,000
7,734,000 6,433,000
Less current portion 3,421,000 1,863,000
$ 4,313,000 $ 4,570,000

Future principal payments on long-term debt for the nexebsyare as follows:

2009 ..o $3,420,000
2010 oo 257,000
2011 494,000
2012 i, 225,000
2013, 225,000
Thereafter............ocoeveeen... 3,113,000
$7,734,000
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The Company has established a $7.5 million revolving lineredit at LIBOR plus 1.30% with Merrill Lynch. The outstargli
balance on our line of credit was $3,164,000 and $1,599,000 at Bexc8t) 2008 and 2007, respectively. Effective Septemb&0D7, the
10-year term loan with an original balance of $3,539,000; the 3lgaamwith an original balance of $366,000; and the line ditchalance
with Mercantile Safe Deposit and Trust Company was aafiad by Merrill Lynch into two ten year term loans fo'5$0,000 and $3,000,000.
These loans are at LIBOR plus 1.3%, which was 1.74% on Dexe®i, 2008. The loans are secured by two buildings, togettierawi
assignment of rents and security interest upon all fixturesondnereafter located in the two buildings.

13. EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

The Board of Directors of Medifast, Inc. implemented anaggment succession plan which occurred over the last 24 madnths.
doing so, they had 3 key executive officers sign 6-year emplolycontracts to ensure that there will be minimal turnoveelected key
management positions. The Executives associated with tleisssimn plan include Michael S. McDevitt, Chief Execu@®féicer and Chief
Financial Officer, Margaret MacDonald, Chief Operatindicef and President, and Brendan Connors, CPA, VP of Finamadlel T.
MacDonald, the Executive Chairman of the Board of Dimsctas signed and executed a new 5 year employment agreesvibiet a
Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors and will prowidegoing executive mentoring, financial and M&A advice, and besness
development for the Company.

On February 8, 2006, three executive officers of the Comgigngd 6-year employment contracts. The officers redeshares of common
stock in varying amounts totaling 380,000 shares at $6.25 per stz will be vested over 6 years. In addition, BradleiMacDonald,
Chairman and CEO signed a new 5-year employment agreenmtentaa granted 100,000 stock options at $6.25 that will vestsoyears
beginning on February 8, 2007. The Board of Directors caulcgie 100,000 options granted to Mr. MacDonald on February08, £
replaced them with a restricted stock grant of 42,000 shdree restricted shares will vest over a period ofa3sybeginning on January 25,
2009.

14. WARRANTS

During 2003, the Company issued 200,000 warrants to James Pamddinthony Burrascono, both affiliated with Villanova
University and 200,000 warrants to an investment bankergdfasay and consulting services provided to the Company. Enamis vest
in five equal installments of 40,000 warrants per year aare-year period. These are five-year warranfgutchase common shares at an
exercise price of $4.80 per share. These warrants maybelled, with a 90-day notice, if the consultants fail tdquen to the satisfaction
of the Company. During 2005, 120,000 unvested warrants issuacthés JParadis and Anthony Burrascono were cancelled. In 200 Ja
Paradis and Anthony Burrascano exercised 80,000 warrants at $%.8D05, the Company incorrectly cancelled 80,000 warrangs t
former consultant. The warrants were correctly added loaitlet2006 warrant schedule. The omission from the scheduleirygar had
no impact on earnings per share. During 2007, the formeultamisexercised 40,000 warrants and 80,000 remain outstanding.

During 2003, the Company issued 50,000 warrants to Consumer €I8ystems, Inc. (“CCS”) as part of the payment for the
purchase of the assets of CCS. These warrants areyd@eearrants to purchase common shares at an exerciseff$it®.00 per share.
Of this amount, 25,000 warrants were exercised in 2004. Ofetinaining 25,000 warrants, 22,810 were exercised in 2006 and the
remaining 2,190 expired.

During 2003, the Company issued 63,750 warrants and 18,750 waodvitsnfield Enterprises, Inc. and Portside Growth &
Opportunity Fund. These warrants are five-year wartansrchase common shares at exercise prices of $16.78 parwghiah was equal
to one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the five-day voluragivted average price, all pursuant to the terms ofdémdhin Securities
Purchase Agreement by and between the Company and Mainfield Basgrjmc. and Portside Growth & Opportunity Fund dated asyof Jul
24, 2003.

During 2008, there were no warrants exercised.

The Company has the following warrants outstanding for thehpse of its common stock:

Years Ended
Exercise December 31,
Price Expiration Date 2007 2007 2006
$4.80 January, 2009 80,000 80,000 120,000
$16.78  July, 2008 - 82,500 82,500
80,000 162,500 202,500
Weighted average exercise price 4.80 10.88 9.68

As of December 31, 2008, 40,000 of the warrants are exercisEdeweighted average exercise price of exercisable
warrants is $4.80.
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15. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS No. 157 “Fair VaksulMenents” (“SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 defines fair value,
provides a consistent framework for measuring fair valueruBdeerally Accepted Accounting Principles and expands faieviitiancial
statement disclosure requirements. SFAS 157’s valuation teeware based on observable and unobservable inputs. Obserpatse
reflect readily obtainable data from independent sourckse wnobservable inputs reflect our market assumptions. IEXclassifies
these inputs into the following hierarchy:

Level 1 Inputs— Quoted prices for identical instruments fivecnarkets.

Level 2 Inputs— Quoted prices for similar instruments iivaanarkets; quoted prices for identical or similar imstents  in
markets that are not active; and model-derived valuationseninpsits are observable or whose significant value drigee
observable.

Level 3 Inputs— Instruments with primarily unobservable vdhiers.

The following table represents the fair value hierarchyttiose financial assets and liabilities measured avdhie on a recurring basis as
of December 31, 2008.

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis as ofrileze31, 2008

Assets Level | Level Il Level lll Total
Investment securities $ 1,099,000 - - $ 1,099,000
Cash equivalents 1,841,000 - - 1,841,000
Total Assets $ 2,940,000 $ - $ - $ 2,940,000
Liabilities - - - R
Total Liabilities $ - $ - $ - $ -

16. RESTATEMENT

The December 31, 2006 financial statements have been destalecrease amortization expense on customer li§$2%;000. Pre-tax
income increased by $125,000 from $7,338,000 to $7,463,000 for thended-December 31, 2006. Net income for the year ended
December 31, 2006 increased by $74,000 from $5,082,000 to $5,156¢D@aaned earnings increased from $5,907,000 to $5,981,000.

17. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Operating segments are components of an enterprisevelfiohtseparate financial information is available that is
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision makeut how to allocate resources and in assessing penfcemahe
Company has two reportable operating segments: Medifasall Other. The Medifast reporting segment consistse
following distribution channels: Medifast Direct, Te&kape for Life, and Doctors. The All Other reportingnsents
consist of Hi-Energy and Medifast Weight Control Centdrs Company’'s parent company operations, as well as the
Consumer Choice Systems, Inc. division which was sold maigmf 2006.

The accounting policies of the segments are the sathesesof the Company. The presentation and allocation of
assets, liabilities and results of operations may ntgatethe actual economic costs of the segments rad-atane
businesses. If a different basis of allocation werézatil the relative contributions of the segments migferdbut
management believes that the relative trends in segmventd likely not be impacted.

The following tables’ present segment information fer years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006:
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Revenues, net

Cost of Sales

Other Selling, General and Adminstrative Expenses
Depreciation and Amortization

Interest (net)

Provision for income taxes

Net income (loss)

Segment Assets

Revenues, net

Cost of Sales

Other Selling, General and Adminstrative Expenses
Depreciation and Amortization

Interest (net)

Provision for income taxes

Net income (loss)

Segment Assets

Revenues, net

Cost of Sales

Other Selling, General and Adminstrative Expenses
Depreciation and Amortization

Interest (net)

Provision for income taxes

Net income (loss)

Segment Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2008

Medifast All Other Eliminations Consolidated
97,116,000 $ 8,329,000 $ 105,445,000
23,611,000 1,721,000 25,332,000
,33F0000 8,138,000 67,472,000
3,613,000 961,000 4,604,
39,000 178,000 217,000
2,415,000 - 2,415,000
8,104,000 $ (2,669,000) - % 5,435,000
34,754,000 $ 16,282,000 $ 51,036,000
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Medifast All Other Eliminations Consolidated
78,861,000 $ 4,918,000 $ 83,779,000
20,364,000 1,100,000 21,464,000
,248000 4,769,000 53,017,000
2,527,000 944,000 3,400,
78,000 205,000 283,000
1,707,000 - 1,707,000
5,937,000 $ (2,100,000) - % 3,837,000
26,023,000 $ 17,701,000 $ 43,724,000
Year Ended December 31, 2006 (Restated)
Medifast All Other Eliminations Consolidated
70,181,000 $ 4,015,000 $ (110,000) $ 74,086,000
17,290,000 947,000 18,237,000
,4142000 3,503,000 45,921,000
1,811,000 460,000 2,200,
146,000 48,000 194,000
2,298,000 9,000 2,307,000
6,218,000 $ (952,000) (110,000) $ 5,156,000
21,978,000 $ 14,949,000 $ 36,927,000
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18. QUARTERLY RESULTS (Unaudited)

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth @uar

2008

Revenue $25,169,000 $27,537,000 $27,281,000 $25,458,000
Gross Profit 19,069,000 20,860,000 20,759,000 19,425,000
Operating Income 2,062,000 2,409,000 2,396,000 1,332,000
Net Income 1,365,000 1,572,000 1,549,000 949,000
Eamings per common share - diluted 0.10 0.11 0.11 7 0.0
2007

Revenue $20,089,000 $22,041,000 $21,846,000 $19,803,000
Gross Profit 15,031,000 16,678,000 16,323,000 14,283,000
Operating Income 1,914,000 1,445,000 1,557,000 799,000
Net Income 1,373,000 909,000 954,000 601,000
Eamings per common share - diluted 0.10 0.07 0.07 4 0.0

(1) -Earnings per common share is computed indegmehydfor each of the quarters presented; accogimg
the sum of the quarterly earnings per common ghaxenot equal the total computed for the year.
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of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officeugsuant to Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, asmdd pursuant to Section 302 of the Sabaxley
Act of 2002.
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* Filed as an exhibit to and incorporated byerefice to the Registration
Statement on Form SB-2 of the Company, Ride 33-71284-NY.

** Filed as an exhibit to and incorporated byereince to the Registration
Statement on Form S-4 of the Company, Fde38-81524.
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(b) Reports on Form 8-K

January 17, 2006, to report the sale of ConsumeicglSystems assets, the promotion of Michael S.
McDevitt to Chief Fir@al Officer, and 2006 financial guidance

August 14, 2006, to report the acceptance by the Xerk Stock Exchange to list common shares orNMSE
September 25, 2006, to report the results of theudhMeeting of Shareholder on September 8, 2006
October 2, 2006, to announce the election of twe Beard of Directors

March 1, 2007, to announce Michael S. McDevitt ppted to CEO, Margaret MacDonald promoted to Presidad COO, and Bradley T. MacDonald named Exeeutiv
Chairman of the Board.

March 7, 2007, to announce full-year 2007 revemgkdiluted earnings per share guidance

Junel2, 2007, to announce the election of a newdBmamber

September 24, 2007, to announce the results ditheal Meeting of Shareholders on September 7, 2007
October 4, 2007, to announce updated full-year 280@nue and diluted earnings per share guidance
December 26, 2007, to announce receipt of notaa flew York Stock Exchange concerning listing ciite
March 12, 2008, to announce financial resultslierquarter and year ended December 31, 2007

May 9, 2008, to announce the election of a new &oaember

June 25, 2008, to announce the election of a neavdBme mber

December 17, 2008, to announce updated 2008 regidance

February 19, 2009, Company response to false claims

March 5, 2009, to announce the election of two Beard members

March 12, 2009, to announce 2008 revenue and egraind provided 2009 sales trending YTD
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Remigthas duly caused this Report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duthenized.

MEDIFAST, INC.
(Registrant)

BRADLEY T. MACDONALD

Bradley T. MacDonald
Executive Chairman of the Board
Dated: March 16, 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the following persons on behalthe Registrant and in the capacities and on #tesd
indicated have signed this Report below.

Name Title Date
/sl BRADLEY T. MACDONALD Chairman of the Body March 16, 2009
Diredor

Bradley T. MacDonald

/sl GEORGE J. LAVIN, ESQ. Director March 16, 2009

George J. Lavin, Esq.

/s/ MICHAEL C. MACDONALD Director March 16, 2009

Michael C. MacDonald

/sl MARY T. TRAVIS Director March 16, 2009

Mary T. Travis

/s/ REV. DONALD F. REILLY, OSA Director March 16, 2009

Rev. Donald F. Reilly, OSA

/s/ MICHAEL S. MCDEVITT Director March 16, 2009

Michael S. McDevitt

/s/ JOSEPH D. CALDERONE Director March 16, 2009

Joseph D. Calderone

/sl CHARLES P. CONNOLLY Director March 16, 2009

Charles P. Connolly

/s/ DENNIS M. MCCARTHY, ESQ. Director March 16, 2009

Dennis M. McCarthy

/s BARRY B. BONDROFF, CPA Director March 16, 2009

Barry B. Bondroff, CPA

/s/ JEANNETTE M. MILLS Director March 16, 2009

Jeannette M. Mills

/sl MARGARET MACDONALD - SHEETZ Director March 16, 2009

Margaret MacDonald Sheetz
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Exhibit 31.1
RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION

I, Michael S. McDeuvitt, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Medifast, ;!

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain anyewstatement of a material fact or omit to stateaterial fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances wich such statements were made, not misleading wsieceto the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, andfwthrcial information included in this report, fairly gest in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations asid ftows of the registrant as of, and for, the perdsented in this report;

4. 1 am responsible for establishing and maintaining dis@asantrols and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rulelb{&sand
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (dimed in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thestegit
and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and procedures to be desigteedun
supervision, to ensure that material information relaiintpe registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaisemadeknown tc
us by others within those entities, particularly during thegen which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reportingaused such internal control over financial reportiniget designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regduelirjability of financial reporting and the preparaidn
financial statements for external purposes in accordanbegemnerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’salsek controls and procedures and presented in this repodrausions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls armbguoes, as of the end of the period covered by this repzad o such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registramtsnal control over financial reporting that occurred dutigregistrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthefisuiarter in the case of an annual report) that has albtexffected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registtamternal control over financial reporting; and

5. I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaludtiotemal control over financial reporting, to the réxgiat's auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant’s board of direcforgpersons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses irdésign or operation of internal control over finanagartingwhich
are reasonably likely to adverselfegt the registrant’s ability to record, process, sunmeand report financial information; &

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves manageror other employees who have a significant rolaérrégistrar's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 16, 2009

/s/  Michael S. McDevitt

Michael S. McDevitt
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION

I, Michael S. McDeuvitt, certify that:

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Medifast, ;|

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain anyewstatement of a material fact or omit to stateaterial fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances wich such statements were made, not misleading wsieceto the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, andfsthecial information included in this report, fairly pest in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations asid ftows of the registrant as of, and for, the perdsented in this report;

I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disasantrols and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rulelb{&®sand
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (dimed in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thestegit
and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and procedures to be desigieedun
supervision, to ensure that material information reldiintpe registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaisemadeknown tc
us by others within those entities, particularly during thegen which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reportingaused such internal control over financial reportiniget designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regduelirjability of financial reporting and the preparaidn
financial statements for external purposes in accordanhbegemnerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’salsek controls and procedures and presented in this repodrausions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls armbguoes, as of the end of the period covered by this repzad o such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registramtsnal control over financial reporting that occurred dutigregistrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthefisuiarter in the case of an annual report) that has albtexffected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registtamternal control over financial reporting; and

I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaludtintemal control over financial reporting, to the régist's auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant’s board of direcforgpersons performing the equivalent functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses irdésign or operation of internal control over finanaégartingwhich
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regissatility to record, process, summarize and report financiatrimdtion; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves manageror other employees who have a significant rolaérrégistrar's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 16, 2009

/s/

Michael S. McDevitt

Michael S. McDevitt
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Medifast, Inc. (tBempany”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200&dsnith

the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date heheofReport”), | Michael S. McDevitt, Chief Executive @#r and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18.0.Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Safihdag Act
of 2002, to the best of my knowledge, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Sectid(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
and
2) The information contained in the report fairly presents, imallerial respects, the financial condition and resultseobperations

of the Company.

By: /s/ Michael S. McDeuvitt
Michael S. McDevitt
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financialfioér
March 16, 2009
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